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NOTICE TO MEMBERS 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting (30th AGM) of Rane Steering Systems Private Limited 
will be held on June 12, 2025 at 15:00 hrs (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) to transact the following businesses: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, together 

with reports of the Board of Directors and Auditor thereon 
 

To consider passing the following resolution as an ordinary resolution: 
 
 

"Resolved that the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 together with the reports 

of the Board of Directors and the Auditor thereon, as circulated to the members and presented to the meeting be and are 

hereby adopted.” 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Harish Lakshman (DIN: 00012602) who retired by rotation and being eligible, 

offers himself for re-appointment 

 
To consider passing the following resolution as an ordinary resolution: 

 
“Resolved that Mr. Harish Lakshman (DIN: 00012602) who retires by rotation pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment be and is hereby re-appointed as Director of the 
Company.” 

  
3. To approve appointment of Statutory Auditors 

 
To consider passing the following resolution as an ordinary resolution: 

 
“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof, for the time being in force), M/s. B S R & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 101248W/ 
W100022) be and are hereby appointed as statutory auditors of the Company in the place of M/s. Varma and Varma, 
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number 004532S), effective from the conclusion of this 30th Annual General 
Meeting (2025) of the Company till the conclusion of the 35th Annual General Meeting (2030) i.e. for a first term of 5 (five) 
consecutive years, on such terms and conditions including remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors of 
the Company, in addition to reimbursement of travelling and other out-of-pocket expenses actually incurred by them in 
connection with the audit.” 
 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS:     

 
4. To approve the appointment of Dr. (Ms.) Brinda Jagirdar as Non- Executive Director of the Company 

 

To consider passing the following resolution as an ordinary resolution: 

 
“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 160 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013 
read with the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force) Dr. (Ms.) Brinda Jagirdar (DIN: 06979864) in respect of whom a notice in writing has been received by the Company 
proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and hereby appointed as Director liable to retire by rotation.  
 
Resolved further that the Board of Directors of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to file necessary documents / 
forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all acts, deeds matters and things as may be deemed necessary, 
desirable, proper and expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters connected therewith or 
incidental thereto.” 
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5. To approve appointment of A Makesh, President as Manager of the Company 

 
To consider passing of the following resolution, as a special resolution: 

 
“Resolved that in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 and 203 read with Schedule V and all 
other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (including any re-enactments thereof) and rules made thereunder 
A Makesh, President be and is hereby appointed as ‘Manager’ within the meaning of Section 2 (53) of the Companies 
Act 2013 (‘the Act’) (a Key Managerial Personnel under the Act) for a period of five years, effective February 1, 2025 
at existing terms of remuneration (on cost to company basis) of Rs.97,57,810/- p.a. (subject to annual increase, 
performance pay and other terms and conditions as he may be eligible under the his terms of employment and / 
policies of the Company). 
 
Resolved further that approval be and is hereby accorded for payment of the remuneration even if the total managerial 
remuneration is in excess of the overall limits specified under Section 197 read with Section 198 of the Act, for 
respective financial years during the tenure of the appointment. 
 
Resolved further that in the event of there being inadequacy or absence of profits in any financial year during the 
currency of tenure as Manager, he will be entitled to above remuneration viz., Salary, Perquisites, Contribution to 
funds, performance pay as minimum remuneration under Schedule V to the Act.” 

 
6. To approve the borrowing powers of the Board 

 

  To consider passing of the following resolution, as a special resolution: 

 
“Resolved that in supersession of the ordinary/special resolution passed at the 21st Annual General Meeting held on                     
July 15, 2016 and pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) and  other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), 
the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors to borrow moneys in excess of the 
aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company, provided that the total amount borrowed 
and outstanding at any point of time, apart from temporary loans obtained / to be obtained from the Company’s 
Bankers in the ordinary course of business, shall not be in excess of Rs.500 crores (Rupees five hundred crores) 
over and above the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company.” 
                

 

       (By Order of the Board) 

For Rane Steering Systems Private Limited 

 
 

Chennai V Sethuraman 
May 07, 2025  Senior Vice President - Finance, CFO & Secretary  
  

Notes:   

 

1.   The 30th AGM of the Company is being conducted through VC / OAVM Facility, in compliance with General Circular No. 09/2024 
dated September 19, 2024 read with previous circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA Circulars’) and the 
provisions of the Act which does not require physical presence of Members at a common venue. The deemed venue for the 
30th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. The web link for attending the 30th AGM of the Company is 

https://meet.google.com/wxf-dysu-mwk.  
 

2. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 

of the Act. 
 

3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote on his / her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant 
to MCA circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the 
facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the proxy form and the 

Attendance slip are not annexed to this notice. 
 

https://meet.google.com/wxf-dysu-mwk


 

 

4. Corporate members intending to authorise representatives to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to 
vote are requested to send to the designated email ID v.sethuraman@ranegroup.com, a certified copy of the board 
resolution authorising their representative. 
 

5. Voting of resolution by Poll: In case, a Poll is ordered by the Chairman on any item during the meeting, the members 
may vote during the meeting by sending emails to the designated email ID: harish.lakshman@ranegroup.com. 
 

6. Since the AGM is held through VC / OAVM, the route map is not annexed in this notice. 
 

 
 
Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
 
Resolution No. 3 
 
M/s. Varma and Varma, Chartered Accountants, (Firm registration Number. 004532S) (V&V) hold the office of statutory 
auditors in first term of five consecutive years from the conclusion of the 27th Annual General Meeting (2022) until the 
conclusion of the 32nd Annual General Meeting (2027). 
 
Pursuant to acquisition of balance 51% equity stake from NSK Ltd, Japan on September 19, 2024, the Company 
became a wholly owned subsidiary of Rane Holdings Limited. M/s.  B S R & Co LLP are the statutory Auditors of                      
Rane Holdings Limited. 
 
In order to align the auditors of the Company with the auditors of the Holding Company, in order to effectively perform 
the audit procedures by the holding company’s auditors as envisaged in guidance issued by SEBI under Regulation 
33 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and also to rationalize the efforts 
and costs involved, the Auditors of the Company have voluntarily decided to step-down as Statutory Auditors after 
completing the audit for March 31, 2025 and effective from the conclusion of this 27th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company. The Board of Directors of the Company, at their respective meetings held on May 07, 2025 have taken note 
of this intention of V&V. 
 
As per the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, an appointment of statutory auditors needs approval 
of the members at general meeting.  
 
After a detailed review of the profile, the Board of Directors of the Company have recommended the appointment of 
M/s BSR & Co., LLP (Firm Registration Number: 101248W / W100022), as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for 
approval of the members at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
 
M/s BSR & Co., LLP have accorded their consent and confirmed that they full-fill all the eligibility criteria envisaged 
under Companies Act, 2013, to hold the office and perform the role of statutory auditor of the Company effectively.  
 
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company and their relatives is concerned or 
interested, financial or otherwise, in the above resolutions except to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the 
Company. 
 
The Board of Directors recommend the ordinary resolution as set out in item no. 3 of this notice for your approval. 
 
Resolution No. 4 
 
The Shareholders may note that consequent to the Company becoming a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Rane Holdings 
Limited and in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 24(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on September 19, 2024, had approved 
the appointment of Dr. (Ms.) Brinda Jagirdar as Additional Director of the Company.  
 
Pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Additional Director holds office upto date of the next Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. It is thus proposed to appoint Dr.(Ms.) Brinda Jagirdar as Non-Executive Director 
of the Company whose office is liable to retire by rotation. 
 
Dr. (Ms.) Brinda Jagirdar is interested in the resolution as it relates to her own appointment. None of the Directors and 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, in the resolution set out at 
Item No. 4. 
 
The Board of Directors recommend the ordinary resolution as set out in item no. 4 of this notice for your approval. 
 

file:///C:/Users/N646951/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/8432H3I2/v.sethuraman@ranegroup.com
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Resolution No. 5 
 
The shareholders of the Company may recall that subsequent to the acquisition of balance 51% of equity share capital 
from NSK Ltd., Japan by Rane Holdings Limited on September 19, 2024 and consequent cessation of                                  
Naoki Kamamoto as Managing Director of the Company on September 20, 2024 the position of Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) as per the Companies Act, 2013 is vacant. 
 

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on January 28, 2025 after considering his qualification, experience and 
expertise approved the appointment of A Makesh, President of the Company be additionally appointed as Manager 
(KMP) under the Companies Act, 2013 for a period of five years with effect from February 01, 2025. The appointment 
be considered on his existing scale of remuneration i.e., Rs.97,57,810/- p.a. (on a Cost to Company basis), subject to 
annual increase, performance pay and other terms and conditions as he may be eligible under the terms of 
employment and / policies of the Company. 
 
Mr. A Makesh is interested in the resolution as it relates to his own appointment. None of the Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, in the resolution set out at Item 
No. 5. 
 
The Board of Directors recommend the special resolution as set out in item no. 5 of this notice for your approval. 
 
Resolution No. 6 
 
The shareholders of the Company may recall that at their 21st Annual General Meeting held on July 15, 2016 had 
approved borrowing powers of up to Rs.150 Crores over and above paid-up capital and free reserves under Section 
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013. During the subsequent years, the Board of Directors has annually fixed the 
borrowing powers of the Company. 
 
The Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of Rane Holdings Limited is a deemed public company under the 
Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Based on the previous borrowings of the Company, the Board of Directors have recommended borrowing powers of 
up to Rs.500 Crores over and above the paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company. It is thus proposed 
to revise the same. Approval of shareholders is now being sought to borrow upto Rs.500 crores in excess of the 
aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company. Approval of the shareholders is sought in 
this regard by way of special resolution. 
 
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, 
in the resolution set out at Item No. 6. 
 
The Board of Directors recommend the special resolution as set out in item no. 6 of this notice for your approval. 
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Your Board of Directors hereby present to you the Thirtieth 

(30th) Annual Report covering the operational and financial 

performance together with the accounts for the year ended 

March 31, 2025 and other prescribed particulars: 
 

1. State of Company’s affairs 
 

The business of your Company is manufacturing and 

marketing of auto components for transportation industry 

such as Passenger Cars and Commercial Vehicles.  

 

The financial year 2024-25 witnessed fall in sales 

coupled with inflationary pressures on costs. The 

Company also went through restructuring in terms of 

shareholding pattern.  
 

1.1. Financial Performance 
 

The financial highlights for the year under review are as 

follows:             

                                                                                                  

(₹ in Crores) 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Revenue from Operations 1706.33 1718.73 

Other Income 1.72 9.07 

Profit / loss before Depreciation, 
Finance Costs, Exceptional items 
and Tax Expense 

24.88 70.59 

Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ 
Impairment 

51.60 52.26 

Profit / (loss) before Finance 
Costs, Exceptional items and Tax 
Expense 

(26.72) 18.33 

Less: Finance Costs 26.92 32.52 

Profit / (loss) before Exceptional 
items and Tax Expense 

(53.64) (14.19) 

Add/(less): Exceptional items 176.00 9.07 

Profit / (loss) before Tax Expense 122.36 (5.12) 

Less: Tax Expense (Current & 
Deferred) 

51.07 (15.60) 

Profit / (loss) for the year (1) 71.29 10.48 

Total Comprehensive Income / 
loss (2) 

(0.39) (0.49) 

Total (1+2) 70.90 9.99 

Balance of loss for earlier years (229.10) (239.09) 

Less: Transfer to Reserves  - 

Less: Dividend paid on Equity 
Shares 

 - 

Less: Dividend Distribution Tax  - 

Balance carried forward (158.20) (229.10) 
 

During the year under review, the Company’s sale and 

operating revenue decreased  by 1% over the previous 

year to ₹1708.05 Crores. 
 

During the year business witnessed slowdown in the 2nd 

and 3rd quarters of the financial year in both the 

commercial & passenger vehicle segments. The 4th 

quarter saw pick up in the passenger car segment. On 

account of the continuing low profits, Current Liabilities is 

greater than current asset to the extent of ₹166.68 Crores   

 

The Company continued to bear the impact of the of the 

adverse product mix as in the previous years. 

Additionally, there were increase in costs on account of 

general inflationary trends. All these factors impacted our 

profits for the year. However, the Company was able to 

partially offset some of the impact by passing on the price 

rise to customers, reduction in material costs by 

negotiations with vendors and suppliers etc. Interest cost 

reduced on account of reduction of debt.  

 

During the year the warranty claims were on reducing 

trend and based on estimates no further provisions are 

required. 

The Loss Before Tax and Exceptional item is ₹53.64 

Crores as against loss of ₹14.19 Crores in the previous 

year. The Profit after tax is ₹70.90 Crores as against 

₹9.99 Crores in the previous year. The Earnings Per 

Share (EPS) is ₹39.82 as against ₹5.86 in the previous 

year. 
 

The company was a Joint Venture company pursuant to 

Joint Venture agreement between Rane Holdings 

Limited and NSK Ltd, Japan upto September 18, 2024. 

 

During the year pursuant to the Share Purchase 

Agreement dated July 1, 2024, between Rane Holdings 

Limited (RHL), NSK Ltd. Japan to which the Company 

was also a party RHL acquired 51% of stake from NSK 

Ltd., Japan and the Company became a Wholly Owned 

Subsidiary of RHL with effect from September 19, 2024 

and the Company was renamed as Rane Steering 

Systems Private Limited with effect from                               

October 16, 2024.  

 

Exceptional Item   

 

During the year the Company received ₹ 176 crores from 

NSK Ltd., Japan pursuant to settlement agreement dated 

July 1, 2024 executed between NSK Ltd, Japan, RHL 

and the Company towards settlement of various claims. 

 

Attention is drawn to Note 27 & 29D on exceptional 

Income & Going Concern assumption. 

 

 During the year the company received from Rane 

Holdings Limited financial support to the tune of ₹50 

Crores by way of inter-corporate loan and ₹250 crores as 

guarantee / shortfall undertaking towards securing credit 

facilities availed by the company from banks / financial 

institutions. 

 

1.2. Appropriation 
 

The Board of Directors, taking into consideration, the 

operational performance, financial position of the 

Company and uncertainties faced by the automotive 

sector and the Indian economy as a whole, has decided 
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not to recommend any dividend, for the year under 

review. The Board of Directors have retained ₹158.20 

crores debit balance in the Profit & Loss account. 
 

1.3. Share capital 
 

During the year under review, there was no change in the 

capital structure of the Company and as at the year 

ended March 31, 2025, the paid up capital of the 

Company stood at ₹17.90 Crores consisting of 1.79 

Crores equity shares of ₹10/- each fully paid up.  
 

1.4. Amendment to Memorandum of Association (MoA) 

and Articles of Association (AoA) 
 

Pursuant to the change in shareholding and resulting 

termination of Joint Venture Agreement (JVA) between 

RHL & NSK Ltd; Japan, during the year under review the 

Memorandum and Articles of Association was amended 

for the change in name and the Company adopted new 

set of Articles.  

1.5 Significant Events 
 

During the year it was decided as part of strategy  to 

monetize non-core assets and accordingly the surplus 

land at Vallancherri Village, Chengalpattu Taluk, 

Chengalpattu District was disposed off subsequent to the 

year end  after securing approval of the shareholders 

through special resolution. 

 

2. Board of Directors and Management 
 

2.1. Composition 
 

The current composition of the Board of Directors of the 

Company is as under: 
 

 

Name of the Director Designation 

Mr. Harish Lakshman 
Chairman, Non-Executive and 
Nominee Director 

Mr. L Ganesh 
Non-Executive and Nominee 
Director 

Mrs. Brinda Jagirdar 
Non-Executive and Additional 
Director (Nominee Director) 

Note: 

a. Mr. Harish Lakshman was designated as Chairman of the 

RSSL with effect from May 07, 2024. 

b. Mr. L Ganesh stepped down from Chairman position and 

continues as Non-Executive and Nominee Director with 

effect from close of business hours on May 06, 2024. 

c. Mrs. Brinda Jagirdar was appointed as a Non-Executive 

and Additional Director effective from September 20, 2024 

and also the Woman Director of the Company as per 

Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.  

d. Mr. Naoki Kamamoto ceased to be a Managing Director 

consequent to withdrawal of nomination by NSK Limited 

with effect from September 20, 2024. 

e. Mr. Hiroyasu Tomita ceased to be an Alternate Director 

consequent to withdrawal of nomination by NSK Limited 

with effect from September 20, 2024. 

f. Mr.Taro Nagai ceased to be a Nominee director Director  

consequent to withdrawal of nomination by NSK Limited 

with effect from September 20, 2024. 

g. Mr.Hideaki Hayami ceased to be a Nominee director 

Director  consequent to withdrawal of nomination by NSK 

Limited with effect from September 20, 2024. 

h. Mr.Takeshi Kihra ceased to be a Nominee director Director  

consequent to withdrawal of nomination by NSK Limited 

with effect from September 20, 2024. 

i. Mr. Thiruchengodu Gopalakrishnan Vijayan ceased to be 

an Alternate Director consequent to withdrawal of 

nomination by NSK Limited with effect from September 20, 

2024. 
 

 

2.1. Board Meetings 
 

A calendar of meetings is prepared and circulated in 

advance to the Directors. During the year, seven (7) 

meetings of the Board of Directors were held on                  

May 06, 2024, July 01, 2024, September 19, 2024, 

September, 20, 2024, October 25, 2024,                         

November 13, 2024 & January 28, 2025. Requisite 

quorum was present throughout these meetings. The 

intervening period between any two consecutive 

meetings was less than 120 days. The Company 

Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary for all 

meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees. 

Approval of the Board of directors is also sought in cases 

of urgent business matters, if any, by passing resolution 

through circulation as permitted by law, such resolutions 

are confirmed in the subsequent Board meeting.  
 

2.2. Key Managerial Personnel 

 

Mr. Naoki Kamamoto held the office of Managing 

Director up to September 20, 2024. Mr. A Makesh, 

Manager (with effect from February 01, 2025) and Mr. V 

Sethuraman, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) & Secretary, 

hold the office of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) within 

the meaning of Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 

(hereinafter referred to as Act). 
 

 

3.  Audit and allied matters 

 

3.1. Audit Committee 
 

Considering the Company being a Wholly Owned 

Subsidiary of Rane Holdings Limited, as per Rule 6 of the 

Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) 

Rules, 2014 read with Rule 4(2) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 

a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company is exempted 

from constituting an Audit Committee. The Board at its 

meeting held on September 20, 2024 dissolved the Audit 

Committee and decided that all functions of the said 

Committee would be discharged by the Board.  
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3.2. Statutory Auditor 

 

 M/s. Varma & Varma (V&V) (Firm registration Number. 

FRN 004532S) were appointed in their first term as 

Statutory Auditor at the 27th AGM held on                       

December 19, 2022 for a period of five consecutive years 

i.e., until the conclusion of the 32nd Annual General 

Meeting (2027) of the Company.  
 

V&V have confirmed that they do not suffer from any 

disqualification under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the rules made thereunder. V&V have 

confirmed that they hold a valid peer review certificate 

issued to them by The Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India. 
 

The report of the Statutory Auditor to the members for the 

year ended March 31, 2025 does not contain any 

qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 

Also there has been no instance of fraud reported by the 

statutory auditors for the period under review. 

 

In order to effectively perform the audit procedures by the 

holding company’s auditors as envisaged in guidance 

issued by SEBI under Regulation 33 of SEBI LODR 

Regulations and also to rationalize the efforts and costs 

involved the Board of Directors considered to align the 

auditors of the Company with the auditors of the Holding 

Company and. hence V&V, the Statutory Auditors of the 

Company voluntarily decided to step-down as  Auditors 

after completing the audit for March 31, 2025 and with 

effective from the conclusion of the upcoming Annual 

General Meeting, to be held on June 12, 2025. 

 

The Board of Directors, after a detailed review of the 

profile, have recommended the appointment of M/s. BSR 

& Co., LLP (Firm Registration Number: 101248W / 

W100022), as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for 

approval of the members at the ensuing 30th Annual 

General Meeting of the Company (2025). Necessary 

resolution relating to their appointment is contained in the 

notice convening 30th Annual General Meeting. 
 

3.3. Cost Audit and maintenance of cost records  
 

 The appointment of Cost Auditor is not applicable to the 

Company under the Companies (Cost Records and 

Audit) Rules, 2014. Further, the Company does not 

manufacture any specified products which necessitate 

the maintenance of cost records as prescribed under 

Section 148(1) of the Act. 
 
 

3.4. Secretarial Auditor 
 

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of 

Directors at their meeting held on May 6, 2024 had re-

appointed M/s. Mohan Kumar & Associates (MKA), 

Practicing Company Secretary as the Secretarial 

Auditors of the Company for the FY 2024-25. The 

Secretarial Audit report given in ‘Annexure A’ was taken 

on record by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 

May 07, 2025. The report does not contain any 

qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 
 

3.5. Internal Auditor 
 

 M/s. Capri Assurance and Advisory Servicies, a firm of 

independent assurance service professionals, continues 

to be the Internal Auditor of the Company. Their scope of 

work includes review of processes for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company, review of operational efficiency, 

effectiveness of systems and processes, and assessing 

the internal control strengths in all areas. Internal Auditor 

findings are discussed with the process owners and 

suitable corrective actions taken as per the directions of 

the Audit Committee / Board of Directors on a regular 

basis to improve efficiency in operations. The Internal 

Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee / Board of 

Directors. The Committee while reviewing their 

performance scope, functioning, periodicity and 

methodology for conducting the internal audit function, 

Audit Committee / Board of Directors has taken into 

consideration their confirmation to the effect that their 

infrastructure viz., internal audit structure, staffing and 

seniority of the officials proposed to be deployed etc. 

which are adequate and commensurate to the scope, 

functioning, periodicity and methodology for conducting 

the internal audit. 
 

For FY 2024-25, the Audit Committee/Board of Directors 

has taken on record their certification to the effect that: 
 

i. They have evaluated the internal control systems and 

risk management systems and reviewed the risk 

management systems and reviewed the 

management’s process of identification and mitigation 

of risks and controls; 
 

ii. There were no significant findings requiring follow-up 

there on and there were no matters of suspected fraud 

or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of 

material nature requiring investigation or reporting to 

the Audit Committee / Board; 
 

iii. Internal control systems of the Company for financial 

reporting are adequate and are operating effectively 

throughout the year; and 
 

iv. The Company has a proper system for ensuring 

compliance with all applicable laws and the same is 

adequate and working effectively. 
 

3.6.  Internal Control Systems 
 

The Company has put in place a robust internal control 

system to prevent operational risks through a framework 

of internal controls and processes. These controls 

ensure that the business transactions are recorded in a 

timely and complete manner in the financial records, 

resources are utilised effectively and the assets are 

safeguarded. 
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The internal audit function is outsourced to a 

professional firm of independent assurance service 

providers. the Board in consultation with the internal 

auditors, statutory auditors and operating management 

approve the annual internal audit plan. The scope also 

covers the internal financial controls and internal 

controls over financial reporting. The internal audit 

findings are placed before the Board of Directors at each 

of its quarterly meetings for review. The management’s 

responses and counter measures are discussed in the 

Board meetings. This process ensures robustness of the 

internal control system and compliance with laws and 

regulations including resource utilization and system 

efficacy. 

4.   Corporate Social Responsibility   
 

The vision on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is 

“To be a socially and environmentally responsible 

corporate citizen”. The CSR activities of Rane Group 

focus on four specific areas of: (a) Education; (b) 

Healthcare; (c) Community Development; and (d) 

Environment. 
 

Considering the exemptions under the Companies Act, 

2013, the Board discharged the functions of CSR 

Committee and dissolve the said committee with effect 

from September 20, 2024. 
 

The Annual Report on CSR activities carried out during 

the year 2024-25 is annexed as ‘Annexure B’.  
 

5.  Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
 

In terms of Section 134(3)(c) read with section 134(5) of 

the Act, the Directors, to the best of their knowledge and 

belief and according to the information and explanations 

obtained by them, confirm that: 
 

i. in the preparation of the financial statements for the 

financial year 2024-25, the applicable accounting 

standards had been followed and there were no 

material departures; 
 

ii. they had selected such accounting policies and 

applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to 

give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company at the end of the financial year and of the 

loss of the Company for the year under review; 

iii. they had taken proper and sufficient care for the 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company, preventing 

and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

iv. they had prepared the financial statements for the 

financial year on a ‘going concern’ basis; 
 

v. they had laid down internal financial controls to be 

followed by the Company and such internal financial 

controls were adequate and were operating 

effectively; and 

 

vi. they had devised proper systems to ensure 

compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and such systems were adequate and operating 

effectively. 
 

6. Related Party Transactions 
 

All related party transactions that were entered into 

during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis 

and were in the ordinary course of business. There were 

no materially significant related party transactions made 

by the Company with related parties which may have a 

potential conflict with the interest of the Company at 

large. 

 

Pursuant to the dissolution of the Audit Committee, all 

related party transactions are placed before the Board. 

Prior omnibus approval of the Board is obtained for the 

transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. 

The transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus 

approval so granted are reviewed by the Board on 

quarterly basis. 
 

The Company has put in place a proper system for 

identification and monitoring of such transactions. The 

policy on Related Party Transactions has been approved 

by the Board and reviewed regularly for any amendments 

required thereto. None of the Directors or Key 

Managerial Personnel or Senior Management Personnel 

had any material financial and commercial transactions 

(except receipt of their remuneration), where they have 

personal interest, which may have potential conflict with 

interest of the Company at large. 
 

7. Energy conservation, technology absorption and 

foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
 

The information on conservation of energy, technology 
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with 
Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
annexed herewith as ‘Annexure C’. 
 

8. Other disclosures 
 

a) Details of loan, guarantee and investment under 

Section 186 of the Act, as applicable, are given in the 

notes to the Financial Statements. 
 

b) The Internal control systems and adequacy are 

discussed in detail in the Management Discussion 

and Analysis annexed to the Directors Report. 
 

c) There was no significant material order passed by 

the Regulators / Courts which would impact the 

going concern status of the Company and its future 

operations. 
 

d) The extract of the Annual Return under section 92(3) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 in form MGT-9 is 

annexed herewith as ‘Annexure D. 
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e) The Company has complied with the applicable 

Secretarial Standards (SS) viz., SS-1 on meetings of 

Board of Directors and SS-2 on General Meetings 

issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

as per section 118(10) of the Act. 
 

f) The Company does not accept any deposit falling 

under the provisions of section 73 of the Act and the 

Rules framed thereunder. 
 

g) The Company has established a formal vigil 

mechanism named ‘Rane Whistle Blower Policy’ for 

reporting improper or unethical practices or actions 

which are violative of the code of conduct of the 

Company. The policy provides adequate safeguard 

against victimisation and has provided direct access 

to the ombudsperson under the policy..  
 

h) The Company has always provided a congenial 

atmosphere for work that is free from discrimination 

and harassment and has provided equal 

opportunities of employment to all irrespective of 

their caste, religion, colour, marital status and 

gender. The Company believes that women should 

be able to do their work in a safe and respectful 

environment that encourages maximum productivity. 

The Company has a zero tolerance towards sexual 

harassment. The Company has adopted a policy on 

prevention of sexual harassment of women at work 

place and put in place proper dissemination 

mechanism across the Company. The Company has 

constituted an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) 

under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

Act, 2013 (POSH). During the period, the details of 

complaints received / resolved or pending are as 

under in accordance with provisions of the POSH, 

are as under: 
 

No. of complaints received during the year – Nil 

No. of complaints disposed off during the year – Nil 

No. of complaints pending for disposal at the end of 

year – Nil 

 

9. Annual General Meeting 
 

The 30th Annual General Meeting would be conducted 

through video conferencing or other audio visual means 

on Thursday, June 12, 2025 at 15:00 hrs. (IST). The 

notice convening the AGM shall contain detailed 

instructions and notes in this regard.   
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Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To 

The Members, 

M/s. Rane Steering Systems Private Limited. 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the Compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Rane Steering Systems Private Limited 

(hereinafter called “the Company”) bearing Corporate Identification Number 

U29141TN1995PTC030621. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 

opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby 

report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 

ended on March 31,2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the 

provisions of:  

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;  

(ii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment. 

However, the provisions relating to Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

borrowings are not applicable to the Company during the audit period. 

(iii)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the Company during the audit 

period:- 

 

a) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;  

b) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015;  

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018;  

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and sweat 

equity) Regulations, 2021;  

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008;  

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;  

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;  

 



 

I further report that the applicable financial laws, such as Direct and Indirect Tax Laws, have not 

been reviewed under my audit as the same falls under the review of statutory auditor and by other 

designated professionals. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by The 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).  

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned as above. 

I further report that 

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Director(s), Non-Executive Directors and Nominee Directors. The changes in the 

composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 

carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  

b) Adequate Notice is given to all Directors to Schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 

meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

c) Majority decision is carried through where there were no dissenting members.  

d) There are adequate system and process in the Company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period, the following major transactions were identified:- 

(i) Mr.  Hiroyasu Tomita was appointed as an Alternate Director to Mr. Takeshi Kihara with effect 

from 15.04.2024. 

(ii) Mr. L Ganesh retired as the Chairman of the Company with effect from close of business hours 

on 06.05.2024 and continues as a Non Executive Nominee Director on the Board. 

(iii) Mr. Harish Lakshman, Nominee Director was appointed as the Chairman of the Company with 

effect from 07.05.2024. 

(iv) The shareholders of the Company in their Annual General Meeting held on 14.06.2024, 

approved the appointment of the Nominee Directors Mr. Hideaki Hayami and Mr. Takeshi 

Kihara. 

(v) The Company has amended its Articles of Association to include provisions relating to 

dematerialization of securities with the approval of the shareholders in their Annual General 

Meeting dated 14.06.2024. 

(vi) The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 01/07/2024 approved the execution of Share 

Purchase agreement between and amongst Rane Holdings Limited (RHL), NSK Ltd Japan 

(NSK), Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited (RNSS) for the transfer of entire 

shareholding held by NSK in RNSS (representing 51% shareholding) ie., 91,29,000 equity 

shares of Rs. 10 each to RHL. Further, the Board approved the settlement agreement between 

and amongst Rane Holdings Limited (RHL), NSK Ltd Japan (NSK), Rane NSK Steering Systems 

Private Limited (RNSS) towards settlement of various claims  amounting to INR 176 crores by 

NSK to RNSS.  

(vii) Pursuant to the terms of the Share Purchase agreement, the Company has changed its name to 

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited and consequently altered its Memorandum of 

Association with the approval of the shareholders vide the Extraordinary General Meeting 

dated 20.09.2024.  

(viii) The shareholders of the Company vide special resolution passed in the Extraordinary 

General Meeting dated 20.09.2024 approved the adoption of new set of Articles of Association 

of the Company. 

(ix) Consequent to the transfer of shares, the Company became a wholly owned subsidiary of 

Rane Holdings Limited and would be deemed to be a public Company for the purposes of 

Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company is a material unlisted subsidiary of RHL.  

(x) In terms of Regulation 24(1) of SEBI LODR, Dr. Brinda Jagridar, an Independent Director in 

RHL was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from 20.09.2024. 



(xi) In order to meet the minimum members requirement for a deemed public Company, M/s. 

Rane Holdings Limited transferred six equity shares held by them to its Nominees. 

(xii) The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 26/07/2024 accorded approval under Section 

186 of the Companies Act, 2013 to acquire the securities of M/s. AMPIN Energy C&I One 

Private Limited or any of its group Companies for a sum upto Rs. 21,60,000 in connection 

with the purchase of 10 lakh units of solar power under the Captive power consumption 

scheme.  

(xiii) Mr. Naoki Kamamoto, Mr. Taro Nagai, Mr. Takeshi Kihara, Mr. Hidaeki Hayami ceased to be  

Nominee Directors effective from 20.09.2024 due to withdrawal of nomination by NSK Ltd, 

Japan. Further, Mr. T.G.Vijayan, Mr.Hiroyasu Tomita ceased to be Alternate Directors due to 

the cessation of Mr. Hidaeki Hayami and Mr. Takeshi Kihara. 

(xiv) The Board granted in principle approval in their Board Meeting held on 25.10.2024 for 

establishment of a branch office in Japan. 

(xv) The Board of Directors of the Company approved the proposal to avail Inter corporate Loan of 

Rs. 50 crores from Rane Holdings Limited in their Board Meeting held on 13.11.2024. 

(xvi) A. Makesh, President of the Company was appointed as Manager (KMP) under the Companies 

Act, 2013 for a period of five years with effect from 01.02.2025. 

(xvii) The Company obtained the approval of the shareholders in the Extraordinary general 

Meeting dated 28.03.2025 for sale of land in Chengalpattu district measuring 3.99 acres 

(deemed to be an undertaking under Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013) for a 

consideration of 50.50 crores. 

 

 

 

FOR MOHAN KUMAR & ASSOCIATES 
 
 
 

 
Place: Chennai. 
Date:07th May, 2024 

A. Mohan Kumar 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Membership Number: FCS 4347 
Certificate of Practice Number: 19145 

Peer Review Certificate Number: 2205/2022 
UDIN: F004347G000285397 

 

This Report is to be read with my testimony of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms 

an integral part of this report.  



 

 

Annexure A 

 

To, 

The Members, 

M/s. Rane Steering Systems Private Limited. 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 
on my audit. 

 
2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial 
records. I believe that the process and practices, I have followed provide a reasonable 
basis for my opinion. 

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 
 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the 
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 
5. The Compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited 
to the verification of procedure on test basis. 

 

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

FOR MOHAN KUMAR & ASSOCIATES 
 
 

  
Place: Chennai. 
Date:07th May, 2024 

A. Mohan Kumar 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Membership Number: FCS 4347 
Certificate of Practice Number: 19145 

Peer Review Certificate Number: 2205/2022 
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Annexure B to Report of the Board of Directors 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES  

for the Financial Year 2024-25  
 

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR 
policy 

 
 

The Company CSR vision is ‘To be a 

socially and environmentally responsible 

corporate citizen’. We believe that being a 

responsible corporate citizen is central to our 

purpose and values, allowing itself to inspire 

trust amongst our business partners and 

motivate people to make the right choices for 

the business, communities and planet.  Our 

belief in good citizenship drives us to create 

maximum impact in areas of: 

(a) Education; 

(b) Health Care; 

(c) Environment; and 

(d) Community Development. 

The policy on CSR has been approved and 

adopted by the Board of Directors. The CSR 

policy envisages establishing a consistent 

CSR framework, identifying broad areas to 

undertake CSR projects and as a guiding 

document to help define, execute, monitoring 

and reporting projects, etc. The policy inter-

alia covers governance structure, Board – 

Committee constitution, working committee 

with their responsibilities. 
 

Overview of projects implemented during 
FY 2024-25: 

 

During the year, though not required as per 

law to contribute to CSR, however in line with 

our moto to give back to Society, the 

Company spent in aggregate ₹0.15 Crores 

towards CSR activities relating to 7 projects 

carried out at Chengalpattu District, Tamil 

Nadu, Bawal, Rewari District, Haryana.  

 

I. Education & Healthcare 
 

A.   Institutional Development –  
 

 Construction of library at 
Mullipakkam Village, Chengalpattu. 

 Providing of drinking water at  
Government ITI, Chengalpattu. 

 Renovation of roofs at Family Life 
Line and water tank at Mappedu 
Guduvanchery. 
 

B. Health Care & Awareness 
Programme 

 

 Providing of IV medical stand and 

rolling chairs at ESI Hospital 

Chengalpattu. 
 

II.  Community Development. 

 Development of pathway to the 
Guduvanchery Police Station. 

 Computers & Printers to 
Guduvanchery Police Station. 

 Construction of Traffic Island at 
Bawal, Rewari. 

 

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee 
 

The Company has constituted a robust 

governance structure to oversee the 

implementation of the CSR projects, in 

compliance with the requirements of Section 

135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR 

governance structure headed by the Board 

CSR Committee. The members of the CSR 

Committee from April 01, 2024 till September 

19, 2024 were: 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director 
Designation / 

Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 
attended during the 

year 

1.  
Mr. Harish Lakshman, 
Committee Chairman 

Non-Executive and 
Nominee Director 

One (1) One (1) 2.  
Mr. L Ganesh, 
Committee Member 

Non-Executive and 
Nominee Director 

3.  
Mr. Naoki Kamamoto 
Committee Member 

Managing Director 
 

Note:  
1. Mr. L Ganesh ceased to be the Chairman of the CSR Committee with effect from May 07, 2024.  
2. Mr. Harish Lakshman was re-designared as Chairman of the CSR Committee with effect from May 07, 2024. 

 

Considering the exemptions under the Companies Act, 2013, the Board discharged the functions of 

CSR Committee and dissolved the said committee with effect from September 20, 2024.

The Board has granted auxiliary power to the working committee of the Company to act on their behalf. 
The members of the CSR working committee are: 
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Members Designation 

Mr. A Makesh Manager 

Mr. V Sethuraman Senior Vice President – Finance, CFO & Secretary 

Mr. R Ramnath Associate Vice President – Human Resource 

  

3. Web-links on the website of the company: 

The Company has no website. Hence, not applicable.  
 

4. Provide executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR projects 

carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 – Not Applicable 
 

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135 

                                                                                                                                              (in ₹)                                             

Particulars 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 

Net profit for the year  (65,66,93,439) (99,28,14,179) 9,98,69,922 

Adjusted Net profit (as per Section 198) (100,66,38,102) (51,14,52,236) (5,87,86,192) 

Average Net profit - 

 

       (b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135 - NIL 

       (c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects / programmes / activities of the previous financial years - NIL 

       (d)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year - NIL 

       (e)  Total CSR obligation for the financial year (5b+5c- 5d) - NIL  
 

6.  (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing project and other than Ongoing Project) - 

₹15,18,880 

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads – NIL 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment – Not Applicable 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (6a+6b+6c) – ₹15,18,880 

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 
 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial Year 
(in ₹) 

Amount Unspent (in ₹) 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per sub-

section (6) of section 135 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to sub-

section (5) of section 135(5) 

Amount Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund 

Amount Date of 
transfer 

15,18,880 NIL NIL 
 

(f) Excess amount for set off: 
 

Sl. 

No. 

Particulars Amount (in ₹) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 - 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 15,18,880 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 15,18,880 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years, if any 

- 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 15,18,880 

 

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Preceding 
Financial 

Year 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account 

under 
section (6) 
of section 

135 
(in ₹) 

Balance 
Amount in 
Unspent 

CSR 
Account 

under 
section (6) 
of section 

135 
(in ₹) 

Amount 
spent in 

the 
reporting 
Financial 

Year  
(in ₹) 

Amount transferred to 
any fund specified 

under Schedule VII as 
per section (6) of 
section 135, if any 

Amount 
remaining 

to be spent 
in 

succeeding 
financial 

year (in ₹) 

Deficiency, 
             if any 

Amount  

(in ₹) 

Date of 

transfer  

NIL  
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8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 
amount spent in the Financial Year: No 
 

 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 

sub-section (5) of section 135 - Not Applicable. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 

 

   Harish Lakshman Ganesh Lakshminarayan 

Chennai Chairman  Director 

May 07, 2025  DIN: 00012602 DIN: 00012583                                   
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Annexure C to the Report of the Board of Directors 

Conservation of energy, Technology absorption and Foreign exchange earnings and outgo 

[Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 
  
 

A. Conservation of Energy  
 

Steps taken or impact on conservation 
 

 Installation of 375 CFM Compressor with Variable 

Speed Drive and Optimise the Compressor. 

 208 Kwp Roof top Solar installed for reducing Co2 

emission at Bawal Plant. 

 Idle time trip implemented on cold forging press 

(300 Ton) machines. 

 Close Air loop for compressed air (new line as well 

as old lines). 

 Robot welding Amano Fume Collector Interlocking 

with welding machine (on-off relay timer installed 

to eliminate the motor run during ideal time). 
 

Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate 

sources of energy – The Company is utilising solar 

and wind energy as alternate source of energy.  
 

The capital investment on energy conservation 

equipment (Capex) – ₹0.17 Crore (EMS & Energy 

efficient air washer). 

B. Technology absorption 
 

Efforts towards technology absorption. 

  Ball Slider Design, Mule sample design 

verification completed and initial confidence has 

been acquired. To evaluate further, Prototype 

drawing released for Ball Slider Tube and Shaft for 

Commercial Vehicles; Manufacturing feasibility for 

cold forming is under progress.  

 Pneumatic Switch LOI has been released to 

supplier and proto type expected by Jun’25. 

 Cost competitive design release for High Force 

Pneumatic Cylinder (without lever arm design) 

which can deliver 2500N minimum has been done. 

Mule sample under development. 

 IPR related, 2 additional patents filed. Electric 

Lock Mechanism and Large Tilt and Telescopic 

Mechanism for CV’s has been filed for complete 

specification. 

 
Benefits derived (product improvement, cost 
reduction, product development or import 
substitution) 
 

 Received LOI with the new technology from a 
customer. 

 

Details of Imported Technology (during the last 3 
years reckoned from the beginning of the                        
FY 2024-25) 
 

Technology 
imported 

Year 
of 

import 

Has the 
technology 
been fully 
absorbed 

Where 
technology not 
fully absorbed 

reason and 
future plan of 

action 

NIL 
 

Expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development                                                                                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                      

(₹ in Crores) 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

A Capital expenditure 1.07 6.34 

B Recurring expenditure 11.58 10.78 

C Total 12.65 17.12 

D 
Total R & D expenses as a 
percentage of total  turnover 

0.7% 1.0% 

 

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo                                                                                                                    

     (₹ in Crores) 

Foreign Exchange 2024-25 2023-24 

Earnings 189.99 11.87 

Outgo     192.24 198.33 

                                 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 
 
 
 
 

  Harish Lakshman   Ganesh Lakshminarayan  
 Chairman Director  
 DIN: 00012602    DIN: 00012583  
Chennai   
May 07, 2025   
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Annexure - D to the Report of the Board of Directors 

Extract of Annual Return 
as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 

Form No.: MGT-9 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rule, 2014] 

 

I. Registration and Other Details: 

 

1. CIN U29141TN1995PTC030621 

2. Registration Date March 22, 1995 

3. Name of the Company 
Rane Steering Systems Private Limited  

(fka Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited) 

4. 
Category / Sub-Category of the 

Company 

Private Company – Limited by Shares / Indian /  

Non- Government Company 

5. 
Address of the Registered office and 

contact details 

“Maithri”, No.132, Cathedral Road, Chennai – 600 086 

Phone: 044 – 2811 2472; Fax: 044 – 2811 2449 

 

6. Whether listed company No 

 

7. 

 

Name, address and contact details of 

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 

 

Integrated Registry Management Services Private Limited, 

2nd  Floor, "Kences Towers", No 1, Ramakrishna Street, 

North Usman Road, T.Nagar, Chennai - 600 017. 

Ph:044-28140801- 03 

 

II. Principal Business Activities of the Company: 

 

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: 

 

Sl. 
No. 

Name and Description of 
main products / services 

NIC Code of the 
Product/ service 

% to total turnover of the 
Company 

1 Electric Power Steering (EPS) 29301 87.16 

2 Mechanical Steering Column ( MSC) 29301 12.84 

 

III. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies: 

 

Sl.  
No. 

Name and address of 
the Company 

CIN / GLN 
Holding/ 

Subsidiary/ 
Associate 

% of 
shares 

held 

Applicable 
Section 

1. 

M/s. Rane Holdings 
Limited 
“Maithri”, No.132, 
Cathedral Road, 
Chennai – 600086, 
India 

L35999TN1936PLC002202 
Holding 

Company 
100 2(46) 

Note: 

1. The company was a Joint Venture company pursuant to Joint Venture agreement between Rane 

Holdings Limited and NSK Limited, Japan upto September 19, 2024 

2. During the year, Rane Holdings Limited (RHL) acquired the balance 51% equity stake from NSK Limited, 

Japan on September 19, 2024 and  the company became a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Rane Holdings 

Limited. The company was renamed as Rane Steering Systems Private Limited with effect from October 

16, 2024.  

 

 

 

 

 



Rane Steering Systems Private Limited  
(fka Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited) 

CIN: U29141TN1995PTC030621 

 

 
 

 

 

 

IV. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Equity) 

i) Category wise Share Holding: 

 

Category 
of Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % of 
Chan

ge 
durin
g the 
year 

Demat Physical Total 
% of 
Total 

Shares 
Demat Physical Total 

% of 
Total 

Shares 

(A) Promoters 

(1) Indian 

(a) Individual/ 
HUF 

- - - - - - - - - 

(b) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - - 

(c) State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - - - 

(d) Bodies Corp. - 87,71,000 87,71,000 49% 1,78,99,994 - 1,78,99,994 99.99%  50.99 

(e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

(f) Any Other – 
Nominees of 
Body 
Corporate 

- - - - 6 - 6 0.01% 0.01 

Sub-Total (A) (1) - 87,71,000 87,71,000 49% 1,79,00,000 - 1,79,00,000 100% 51.00 

(2) Foreign          

(a) NRIs - 
Individuals 

- - - - - - - - - 

(b) Other - 
Individuals 

- - - - - - - - - 

(c) Bodies Corp. - 91,29,000 91,29,000 51% - - - -  (51.00) 

(d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

(e) Any Other - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-Total (A) (2) - 91,29,000 91,29,000 51% - - - -   (51.00) 

Total 
Shareholding of 
Promoters and 
Promoter Group 
(A) = (A) (1) + (A) 
(2) 

- 1,79,00,000 1,79,00,000 100% 1,79,00,000 - 1,79,00,000 100% - 

(B) Public Shareholding 

(1) Institutions 

(a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - - 

(b) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - - 

(c) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - - 

(d) State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - - - 

(e) Venture 
Capital funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

(f) Insurance 
Companies 

- - - - - - - - - 

(g) FIIs - - - - - - - - - 

(h) Foreign 
Venture 
Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

(i) Others 
(Specify) 

- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-Total (B)(1) - - - - - - - - - 

(2) Non- Institutions 

(a) Bodies Corp 

i. Indian - - - - - - - - - 

ii. Overseas - - - - - - - - - 

(b) individuals - - - - - - - - - 



Rane Steering Systems Private Limited  
(fka Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited) 

CIN: U29141TN1995PTC030621 

 

 
 

Category 
of Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % of 
Chan

ge 
durin
g the 
year 

Demat Physical Total 
% of 
Total 

Shares 
Demat Physical Total 

% of 
Total 

Shares 

Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominalshare 
capital up toRs.1 
lakh 

- - - - - - - - - 

Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs.1 
lakh 

- - - - - - - - - 

(C) Others (Specify) 

Sub-Total (B)(2) - - - - - - - - - 

Total 
shareholding of 
Promoter 
= (B) (1) + (B) (2) 

- - - - - - - - - 

C. Shares held 
by custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs 

- - -  - - - - - 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

- 1,79,00,000 1,79,00,000 100% 1,79,00,000 - 1,79,00,000 100% - 

 

ii) Shareholding of Promoters: 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Shareholders’ 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 

year 
Shareholding at the end of the year 

%of 

Change 

during 

the year 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

Company 

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

Shares 

of the 

company 

%of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 

1 NSK Ltd., Japan 91,29,000 51 - - - - (51%) 

2 
Rane Holdings 

Limited 
87,71,000 49 - 1,79,00,000     100 - 51% 

 

Total 
1,79,00,000 100 - 1,79,00,000     100 - - 

 

iii) Change in Promoters shareholding: During the year, Rane Holdings Limited (RHL) acquired 51% 

equity stake in the Company from NSK Ltd, Japan and  the Company became a Wholly Owned Subsidiary 

of Rane Holdings Limited with effect from September 19, 2024 and the company was renamed as Rane 

Steering Systems Private Limited with effect from October 16, 2024. 

 

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of 

GDRs and ADRs): Not Applicable 
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v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

Sl. 

No. 

For each of the Directors 

and KMP 

Shareholding during 

the year 

Cumulative 

Shareholding during 

the year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

1 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

2 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

shareholding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 

allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity 

etc.) 

 

Date: 19-09-2024 

Reason: Transfer of shares  

Consequent to acquisition of remaining 

51% of shares by RHL from NSK Ltd., 

Japan and in order to meet the minimum 

member’s requirement under the 

Companies Act, 2013 i.e., not less than 

seven for a public company, RHL 

transferred of shares to its Nominees who 

shall hold such shares on behalf of RHL. 

2 0.00 2 0.00 

3 At the end of the year 2 0.00 2 0.00 

Note: 2 shares represent shares held by Mr. Harish Lakshman (DIN:00012602) & Mr. L Ganesh (DIN:00012583) as Nominees 

of Rane Holdings Limited, the Holding Company. 

 

V. Indebtedness:  

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

(Amount in ₹) 

Particulars 

Secured Loans 

(Excluding 

Deposits)  

Unsecured 

Loans 
Deposits 

Total 

Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year 

i)  Principal Amount - 325,00,00,000 - 325,00,00,000 

ii) Interest due but not paid -  -  

iii)Interest accrued but not 

due 
- 10,54,028 - 10,54,028 

Total (i+ii+iii) - 325,10,54,028 - 325,10,54,028 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 

Addition 349,12,82,795 65,00,00,000 - 414,12,82,795 

Reduction 175,00,00,000 340,10,54,028 - 515,10,54,028 

Net Change 174,12,82,795 (275,10,54,028) - (100,97,71,233)  

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 

i)  Principal Amount 174,05,45,555 50,00,00,000 - 224,05,45,555 

ii) Interest due but not paid 7,37,240 - - 7,37,240 

iii)Interest accrued but not 

due 
- - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 174,12,82,795 50,00,00,000 - 224,12,82,795 
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VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager: 

    (Amount in ₹) 

Sl.No. Particulars of Remuneration 

Managing Director Manager 

Mr. Naoki 

Kamamoto  

(Up to September 

20, 2024) 

A Makesh 

(From February 01, 

2025) 

1 Gross salary                            

(a) 
Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
83,56,778 13,07,300 

(b) 
Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 

Act, 1961 
7,63,710 3,600 

(c) 
Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income-tax Act, 1961 
- - 

2 Stock Option - - 

3 Sweat Equity - - 

4 Commission-Provision- as % of profit - - 

5 
Others, please specify – Variable 

performance 
- - 

Total (A) 91,20,488 13,10,900 

 
B. Remuneration to other Directors: 

 

 

 

Sl. 
No
. 

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Name of Directors 

Total 
Amount 

Mr. Harish 
Lakshman 

Mr. L 
Ganesh 

Dr. (Ms.) 
Brinda 

Jagirdar 

Mr. Hiroyasu 
Tomita 
(Up to  

September 20, 
2024) 

Mr.Taro Nagai 
(Up to  September 

20, 2024) 

Mr.Takeshi 
Kihra 
(Up to 

September 
20, 2024) 

Mr.  
Thiruchengodu 
Gopalakrishnan 

Vijayan 
(Up to  

September 20, 
2024) 

A. Independent Directors 

1 

Fee for attending 
Board / 
Committee 
meeting(s) 

Not Applicable 
2 Commission 

3 
Others, please 
specify 

Total (1) 

B. Other Non - Executive Directors 

1 

Fee for attending 
Board / 
Committee 
meeting(s) Nil 

2 Commission 

3 
Others, please 
specify 

Total (2)  - 

Total (B) = (1) + (2)  - 

Total Managerial 
Remuneration (A+B) 

 - 

Overall Ceiling as per the Act - Not applicable 

Note: 

1. Mr. Harish Lakshman was designated as Chairman of the RSSL with effect from May 07, 2024. 

2. Mr. L Ganesh stepped down from Chairman position and shall continue as Non-Executive and Nominee Director with effect from close of business 

hours on May 06, 2024. 

3. Mrs. Brinda Jagirdar was appointed as a Non-Executive and Additional Director effective from September 20, 2024 and also the Woman Director 

of the Company as per Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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4. Mr. Naoki Kamamoto ceased to be a Managing Director consequent to withdrawal of nomination by NSK Limited with effect from                 

September 20, 2024. 

5. Mr. Hiroyasu Tomita ceased to be an Alternate Director consequent to withdrawal of nomination by NSK Limited with effect from                 

September 20, 2024. 

6. Mr.Taro Nagai ceased to be a Nominee director Director consequent to withdrawal of nomination by NSK Limited with effect from               

September 20, 2024. 

7. Mr.Hideaki Hayami ceased to be a Nominee director Director  consequent to withdrawal of nomination by NSK Limited with effect from September 

20, 2024. 

8. Mr.Takeshi Kihra ceased to be a Nominee director Director consequent to withdrawal of nomination by NSK Limited with effect from September 

20, 2024. 

9. Mr. Thiruchengodu Gopalakrishnan Vijayan ceased to be an Alternate Director consequent to withdrawal of nomination by NSK Limited with 

effect from September 20, 2024. 

 
C. Remuneration to other Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ Manager/ WTD: 

(Amount in ₹) 

Sl. 

No. 
Particulars of Remuneration 

Chief Financial Officer & 

Company Secretary -  

Mr. V Sethuraman 

1 Gross salary                          

(a) 
Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
64,73,054 

(b) 
Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 

Act, 1961 
- 

(c) 
Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income-tax Act, 1961 
- 

2 Stock Option - 

3 Sweat Equity - 

4 

Commission 

- as % of profit 

- others, specify… 

- 

5 Others, please specify - 

Total (C) 64,73,054 

 

VII. Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding of Offences: 

There were no penalties, punishments or compounding of offences during the year ended 

March 31, 2025. 

For and on behalf of the Board  

 

 

 

Harish Lakshman 

Chairman 

DIN: 00012602 

Ganesh Lakshminarayan 

Director  

DIN:00012583  

Chennai         

May 07, 2025        



 

 

 

  INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To, 

The Members, 

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Rane Steering Systems Private 

Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Statement of 

Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and 

the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including a 

summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 

(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit and 

total comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 

in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 

of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon (Other 

Information) 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report 

including Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Corporate Information, but does 

not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 

to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone 

Financial Statements  

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 

with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 

of the financial position, financial performance including other Comprehensive Income, changes in 

equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 

of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material  misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 



 

 

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 

on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 

are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate 

internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 

to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 



 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 

statements including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 

materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 

results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 

statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013, we give in “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 

the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in 

para 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies(Audit & Auditors ) 

Rules, 2014.  

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS 

specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014.  



 

 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 

2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 

31st March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected 
therewith are stated in para 2(b) above on reporting under 143(3)(b) and para 2(i)(vi) below 
on reporting under Rule 11(g). 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report 

in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 

operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 

reporting 

 

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the 

Company; 

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 

of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 

in its financial statements – Refer Note 31 to the financial statements 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv.  

i. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any 

other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 



 

 

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

ii. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 

received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 

(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

iii. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 

caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 

Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material 

misstatement. 

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used 

accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 

facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 

transactions recorded in the software, except that the same was not enabled; 

a. at the application layer of the accounting software for fields of tables 

relating to certain modules and for direct data changes performed by users 

having privileged access; and 

b. at the database layer of the accounting software 

 

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of 

the audit trail feature being tampered with.  Additionally, the audit trail has 

been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record 

retention. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

vii. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and hence, 

the related reporting requirements under sub-clause (f) of Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable 

  

 

 

For Varma & Varma 

 Chartered Accountants 

 FRN. 004532S 

  

  

Place: Chennai P.R Prasanna Varma 

Date:  May 7, 2025 Partner 
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING REPORT ON 

“OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR INDEPENDENT 

AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OF RANE STEERING SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2025 

(i)  

a. (A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details 

of right-of-use assets. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible 

assets. 

b. The Company has a program of physical verification to cover all the items of Property, 

Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets in a phased manner which, in our opinion, 

is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 

examination of the records of the company no material discrepancies have been noticed 

on such verification. 

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 

examination of the records of the company, we report that the title deeds of immovable 

properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 

agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the financial 

statements are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.   

d. The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including 

right- of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year. 

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 

examination of the records of the company, no proceedings have been initiated during 

the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any 

benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and 

rules made thereunder. 

 

(ii)  

a. In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at 

reasonable intervals during the year. According to the information and explanations 



 

 

given to us and based on the examination of the records of the company, we are of the 

opinion that the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is 

appropriate and no material discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class 

of inventory were noticed on such physical verification.  

 

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working 

capital limits in excess of five Crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of 

security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by 

the Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the 

Company except as given in Appendix 1. The Company has not been sanctioned 

working capital limits in excess of five crores rupees, in aggregate, from financial 

institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.  

 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, 

provided any security or guarantee to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any 

other parties during the year. The Company has granted unsecured interest free loans to its 

employees, during the year, in respect of which the requisite information is as below.: 

 

a. The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood 

guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year other than 

unsecured interest free loans granted to its employees;  

 

(A) Since there are no loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries, 

joint ventures and associates, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a)(A) of the Order 

is not applicable. 

 

(B) In respect of unsecured interest free loans to its employees, the aggregate 

amount of loans granted during the year was Rs. 0.72 Crores and the balance 

outstanding as at 31st March, 2025 is Rs.0.43 Crores.  

 

b. Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and as per the information and 

explanations given to us the Company has not made investments during the year and 

hence,  reporting under clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 



 

 

c. In respect of interest free loans granted by the Company to its employees, the schedule 

of repayment of principal has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts 

have generally been regular as per stipulation.  

 

d. In respect of interest free loans granted by the Company to its employees, there is no 

overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date. 

 

e. No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been 

renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given 

to the same parties. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

f. The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either 

repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during 

the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the 

company examined by us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 186 

of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of investments made.   The company has not granted 

any loans or given any security or guarantee for which the provisions of section 185 and 

186 of the Act are applicable.  

 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. 

Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(vi) The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 

148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company, and hence, 

reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(vii)  

a. As per the information and explanations furnished to us, and according to our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been regular in 

depositing the undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident 

fund, employees state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, 

duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable to 

the Company with the appropriate authorities during the year and no undisputed 

amounts in respect of material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March, 2025 for 

a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 



 

 

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of 

the Company examined by us, the particulars of dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that 

have not been deposited on account of any dispute as at 31st March, 2025  are as follows: 

Nature of 
the statute 

Nature of 
dues 

Amount 
Involved 

(Rs. In 
Crs) 

Amount 
paid 

under 
Protest 
(Rs. In 

Crs) 

Period to 
which the 

amount 
relates 

Form where 
dispute is 
pending 

Finance act, 
1994 

Service tax 2.81 0.12 
April 2010 - 
March 2015 

The Customs 
Excise and 
Service Tax 
Appellate 
Tribunal 

Finance act, 
1994 

Service tax 0.12 Nil 
June 1998 to 
November 

1998 

Adjudicating 
Authority 

Central 
Excise Act, 

1944 

Excise 
Duty 

0.15 0.01 

March 2012 
to 

September 
2013 

Adjudicating 
Authority 

Central 
Excise Act, 

1944 

Excise 
Duty 

0.15 - 
September 

2002 to 
March 2006 

Adjudicating 
Authority 

Customs 
Act,1965 

Custom 
duty 

0.04 - 

October 
2003 to 

November 
2003 

Adjudicating 
Authority 

CGST 
Act,2017 

GST 2.95 0.14 
July 2017 – 
March 2018 

Appellate 
Authority, GST 

CGST 
Act,2017 

GST 11.16 0.52 
April 2018 – 
March 2019 

Appellate 
Authority, GST 

CGST 
Act,2017 

GST 10.83 0.54 
April 2019 – 
March 2020 

Appellate 
Authority, GST 

Income tax 
Act, 1961 

Income tax 6.74 0.00 
April 2014 
to March 

2015 

Commissioner 
Appeals  

Income tax 
Act, 1961 

Income tax 1.34 0.0 
April 2019 
to March 

2020 

Commissioner 
Appeal 

 



 

 

 

(viii) As per the information and explanations furnished to us, and according to our examination 

of the records of the Company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded 

income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Hence, reporting under clause 

3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(ix) As per the information and explanations furnished to us, and according to our examination 

of the records of the Company 

a. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 

payment of interest to any lender.  

b. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution 

or other lender. 

c. The company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding 

term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c ) of the 

Order is not applicable. 

d. On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised 

on short term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

e. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence, 

reporting on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

f. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence, 

reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) As per the information and explanations furnished to us, and according to our examination 

of the records of the Company , 

a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 

offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 

3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 

placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence 

reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) As per the information and explanations furnished to us, and according to our examination 

of the records of the Company , 



 

 

a. No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or 

reported during the year. 

b. No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in 

Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 

c. As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints 

received by the Company during the year. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order 

is not applicable. 

 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the 

Company examined by us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 

sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details thereof have been duly 

disclosed in Note 32 to the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable 

Indian Accounting Standards. 

 

(xiv)  

a. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size 

and the nature of its business. 

 

b. We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 

Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of 

our audit procedures. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based the records of the 

Company examined by us, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 

directors or persons connected with the directors and hence,  reporting under clause 3(xv) of 

the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us,  

a. the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 



 

 

b. The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 

activities during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

c. The company is a not Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 

made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order 

is not applicable. 

d. As represented to us by the management, there is no core investment company as 

defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India within the Group. Hence, 

reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately 

preceding financial year.  

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

(xix) Attention is invited to Note No. 29E to the Financial Statements. Having regard to the facts 

stated therein and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of 

realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 

accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 

Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 

assumptions and also considering the commitment from the Holding Company to infuse 

additional funds as and when required as stated in the aforementioned note, nothing has 

come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on 

the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 

existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 

from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 

viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the 

date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 

liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 

discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

 

 

 



 

 

(xx) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on on-going 

or other than ongoing projects. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the 

order is not applicable for the year. 

  

For Varma & Varma 

 Chartered Accountants 

 FRN. 004532S 

  

  

Place: Chennai P.R Prasanna Varma 

Date:  May 7, 2025 Partner 

 M.No. 025854 

 

 

  



 

 

 

Annexure 1 to Independent Auditor’s Report 

Quarter Name of bank Particulars 

Amount 
as 

reported 
in the 

quarterly 
return/ 

statement 
(A) 

Amount 
as per 

books of 
account 

 (B) 

Amount of 
difference 

(A-B) 

Whether 
return/ 

statement 
subsequently 

rectified 

Mar-25 ICICI Bank 

      No 
 
  
  

Trade 
Receivables 

               
217.00  

215.45 -1.55 

    

 



 

 

ANNEXURE ‘B’ REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2(g) UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON 

OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR INDEPENDENT 

AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OF RANE STEERING SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 

2025 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Rane Steering 

Systems Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit 

of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 

to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 

and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 

audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 

and, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 

and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 

 

 



 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 

the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 

use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 

or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

 



 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 

reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 

of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

 

  

For Varma & Varma 

 Chartered Accountants 

 FRN. 004532S 

  

  

Place: Chennai P.R Prasanna Varma 

Date:  May 7, 2025 Partner 

 M.No. 025854 

 

 



Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Crores of Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 186.83                               240.57                                
Capital work-in-progress 4a 36.01                                 7.89                                    
Intangible assets 4 2.31                                   1.82                                    
Intangible assets under development 4c 22.65                                 -                                         
Right-of-use assets 4b 11.08                                 5.64                                    
Financial assets
  (i) Investments 5.1 0.44                                   0.44                                    
  (ii) Other financial assets 5.2 5.07                                   2.91                                    
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 15 10.32                                 61.25                                  
Income tax assets (Net) 6.3 9.86                                   9.51                                    
Other non-current assets 6.1 7.41                                   3.21                                    
Total non-current assets 291.98                               333.24                                

Current assets
Inventories 7 118.40                               120.03                                
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 8 215.45                               215.12                                
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 0.05                                   0.35                                    
(iii) Loans 9.1 0.43                                   0.21                                    
(iv) Other financial assets 9 0.11                                   0.14                                    

Other current assets 6.2 11.57                                 6.05                                    

Total current assets 346.01                               341.90                                

Assets held for Sale 4d 26.13                                 

Total Assets 664.12                               675.14                                

Equity and Liabilities

Equity
Equity share capital 11 17.90                                 17.90                                  
Other equity 12 66.31                                 (4.59)                                  
Total equity 84.21                                 13.31                                  

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
  (i) Borrowings 13 50.00                                 -                                         
  (ii) Lease liabilities 17a 8.50                                   4.02                                    
Provisions 14 8.72                                   7.30                                    
Total non-current liabilities 67.22                                 11.32                                  

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
  (i) Borrowings 13 174.05                               325.00                                
  (ii) Lease liabilities 17a 3.35                                   2.55                                    
  (iii) Trade payables

-Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises 16 5.58                                   10.32                                  

-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises 
and Small enterprises

16 267.47                               252.44                                

  (iv) Other financial liabilities 17 21.58                                 14.74                                  
Other current liabilities 18 8.30                                   6.20                                    
Provisions 14 32.36                                 39.26                                  
Total current liabilities 512.69                               650.51                                
Total liabilities 579.91                               661.83                                

Total Equity and Liabilities 664.12                               675.14                                

Material Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Varma & Varma For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 004532S

P.R. Prasanna Varma Harish Lakshman Ganesh Lakshminarayan
Partner Chairman Director
Membership No.: 025854 DIN - 00012602 DIN - 00012583
Place: Chennai
Date:  May 07, 2025

V Sethuraman A Makesh
CFO & Company Secretary Manager, President

Place: Chennai
Date:  May 07, 2025



Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Crores of Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes
Year ended

March 31, 2025
Year ended

March 31, 2024

Revenue from operations 19 1,706.33                    1,718.73                           
Other income 20 1.72                           9.07                                  
Total Income 1,708.05                    1,727.80                           

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 21 1,418.42                    1,372.48                           
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade  and work-
in-progress

22 (6.12)                          1.52                                  

Employee benefits expense 23 109.64                       106.18                              
Finance costs 24 26.92                         32.52                                
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 51.60                         52.26                                
Other expenses 26 161.23                       177.03                              
Total expenses 1,761.69                    1,741.99                           

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (53.64)                        (14.19)                               

Exceptional items 27A 176.00                       9.07                                  
Profit/(Loss) before tax 122.36                       (5.12)                                 

Tax expense
  Current tax 0.01                           0.05                                  
  Deferred Tax charge / (credit) 51.06                         (15.65)                               

51.07                         (15.60)                               
Profit/(Loss) for the year (I) 71.29                         10.48                                

Other comprehensive income:
(i) Items that will not to be reclassified to Statement of Profit or 
Loss
Remeasurement losses on defined benefit plans (net) (0.52)                          (0.76)                                 
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement 
of Profit or Loss 0.13                           0.27                                  

(0.39)                          (0.49)                                 

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax (II) (0.39)                          (0.49)                                 

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (I + II) 70.90                         9.99                                  

Earnings per equity share (in Rs.) 28
Basic 39.82                         5.86                                  
Diluted 39.82                         5.86                                  
Nominal value per equity share (in Rs.) 10.00                         10.00                                

Material Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Varma & Varma For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 004532S

P.R. Prasanna Varma Harish Lakshman Ganesh Lakshminarayan
Partner Chairman Director
Membership No.: 025854 DIN - 00012602 DIN - 00012583
Place: Chennai
Date:  May 07, 2025

V Sethuraman A Makesh
CFO & Company Secretary Manager, President

Place: Chennai
Date:  May 07, 2025

27B



Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Crores of Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024
Cash flow from operating activities

Net (loss) before tax 122.36                              (5.12)                                   
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation expenses 51.60                                52.26                                   
Provision for warranty 3.90                                  4.35                                     
Provision for Inventory 5.57                                  1.25                                     
Provisions no longer required written back (0.36)                                 (5.07)                                   
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.20)                                 0.19                                     
Net foreign exchange differences (unrealised) (0.20)                                 (0.30)                                   
Finance income (0.12)                                 (0.08)                                   
Finance costs 26.92                                32.52                                   
Net reversal on derecognition of Lease liability & ROU asset (0.21)                                 -                                           
Operating profit before working capital changes 209.26                              80.00                                   
Adjustments for:
Decrease/(increase) in Trade and other receivables 0.03                                  (34.19)                                 
Decrease/(increase) in Other non current assets 0.01                                  0.01                                     
Decrease/(increase) in Other current assets (5.52)                                 3.36                                     
Decrease/(increase) in Other financial assets (2.35)                                 (0.35)                                   
Decrease/(increase) in Inventories (3.95)                                 28.45                                   
Increase/(decrease) in Provisions (9.90)                                 (48.96)                                 
Increase/(decrease) in Other financial liabilities (0.02)                                 0.12                                     
Increase/(decrease) in Other current liabilities (2.91)                                 3.54                                     
Increase/(decrease) in Trade payables 10.49                                31.11                                   
Cash flows from operating activities 195.14                              63.09                                   
Income tax (paid)/refund- (net) (0.36)                                 (2.28)                                   
Net cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities     A 194.78                              60.81                                   

Cash used in investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (Including capital work-in-
progress, capital advances and capital payables)

(68.95)                               (44.30)                                 

Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment and Assets held for 
sale (including advance received for sale)

5.26                                  0.11                                     

Interest received (Finance income) 0.12                                  0.08                                     
Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities   B (63.57)                               (44.11)                                 

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds of long term borrowings 50.00                                -                                           
Proceeds from Short term borrowings 364.05                              169.73                                 
Repayment of short term borrowings (515.00)                             (150.73)                               
Interest paid (25.99)                               (31.72)                                 
Payment of Lease liabilities (4.57)                                 (4.52)                                   
Net cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities C (131.51)                             (17.24)                                 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (0.30)                                 (0.54)                                   

    Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 10) 0.35                                  0.89                                     
    Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 10) 0.05                                  0.35                                     

Non Cash Financing and Investing activities
Acquisition of Right-of-use assets 9.65                                  -                                       

Material Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Varma & Varma For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 004532S

P.R. Prasanna Varma Harish Lakshman Ganesh Lakshminarayan

Partner Chairman Director
Membership No.: 025854 DIN - 00012602 DIN - 00012583
Place: Chennai
Date:  May 07, 2025

V Sethuraman A Makesh

CFO & Company Secretary Manager, President
Place: Chennai
Date:  May 07, 2025

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)



Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Crores of Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

a) Equity Share Capital:

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Number of 
shares

Amount

 As at April 01, 2023 1,79,00,000                        17.90                                
Issue of share capital -                                          -                                        

 As at March 31, 2024 1,79,00,000                        17.90                                
Issue of share capital -                                          -                                        

 As at March 31, 2025 1,79,00,000                        17.90                                

b) Other equity

General 
Reserve

Share premium
Retained 
earnings

As at April 01, 2023 207.41                 17.10                                  (239.09)                             (14.58)                                    
Profit for the year -                           -                                          10.48                                10.48                                     
Other comprehensive income / (loss) -                           -                                          (0.49)                                 (0.49)                                      
Total comprehensive income 207.41                 17.10                                  (229.10)                             (4.59)                                      
Transfer to General Reserve -                           -                                          -                                        -                                             

 As at March 31, 2024 207.41                 17.10                                  (229.10)                             (4.59)                                      
Profit for the year -                           -                                          71.29                                71.29                                     
Other comprehensive income / (loss) -                           -                                          (0.39)                                 (0.39)                                      
Total comprehensive income 207.41                 17.10                                  (158.20)                             66.31                                     
Transfer to General Reserve -                           -                                          -                                        -                                             

 As at March 31, 2025 207.41                 17.10                                  (158.20)                             66.31                                     

Material Accounting Policies 2                           
See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For Varma & Varma For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 004532S

P.R. Prasanna Varma Harish Lakshman Ganesh Lakshminarayan
Partner Chairman Director
Membership No.: 025854 DIN - 00012602 DIN - 00012583
Place: Chennai
Date:  May 07, 2025

V Sethuraman A Makesh
CFO & Company Secretary Manager, President

Place: Chennai
Date:  May 07, 2025

Reserves & Surplus
Total Other Equity

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

Particulars



Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Crores of Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of Material accounting policies

2.1  Basis of Preparation 
Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India requires the management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as of the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenues and expenses for
the year and disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the Balance Sheet date. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about the assumptions and estimates may
result in outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities in future periods.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

2.2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies

a. Current versus non-current classification

1. Corporate Information
Rane Steering Systems Private Limited ( RSSL) ( formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited) a Company incorporated in 1995 , is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Rane Holdings Limited with effect from September 19, 2024 pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) entered into
between NSK Ltd, Japan (“NSK”), the erstwhile holding company, and Rane Holdings Limited (RHL), on July 1, 2024 to which the Company is also a party.
As per the SPA, RHL acquired 51% of the shareholding in the Company from NSK. Consequently, the name of the Company stands changed to Rane Steering
Systems Private Limited.

Prior to the above Corporate action, RSSL was a 51:49 Joint Venture between NSK Ltd. Japan, and RHL, until September 18, 2024.

 The Company is engaged in the business of manufacture and supply of steering columns to automotive customers.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013,
(Ind AS compliant Schedule III).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value
(refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
-Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
-Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
-Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
-Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
-It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
-It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
-It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.



b. Fair Value Measurement

c. Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the
principal in its revenue arrangements, since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements since it typically controls the good or services before
transferring them to the customer.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
- The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use of  selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
> Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
> Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
> Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as investments and deposits measured at
fair value, and for non-recurring measurement.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

i. Sale of products
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the equipment.
The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery. In determining the transaction price for the sale of products, the Company considers the effects of
variable consideration.

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. 

Revenue from operations comprises sales of goods after the deduction of discounts on sales.

Some of the contracts for the sale of products includes claims on the Company for price revision. These price revisions are accounted when facts and
circumstances indicated that a price reduction is probable and the amount are reasonable estimable. The claims by the Company are recorded when it is
accepted and it is reasonably certain that the amounts will be collected.



Contract balances

d. Foreign currency transactions and balances

e. Inventories

a) Raw materials and components, stores and spares - Weighted average method
b) Work in progress and finished goods  - Material cost plus appropriate share of labour and production overheads

Inventories are written down for obsolete/slow moving/non-moving items wherever necessary.

f. Provisions

Warranty provisions

g. Contingent liabilities

Subsequent Recognition
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

ii. Tool development income
Tool development income is recognized on completion of tooling program and its satisfactory performance and when the substantial risk and rewards of
ownership in the tool is transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract.

Trade receivables
A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is
due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (o) Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported
in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

Stores and spare parts, Raw materials and components, work in progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. The basis of
determining cost for various categories of inventory is as follows. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions for warranty related costs are recognized as and when the product is sold or service provided. Provision is based on historical experience. The
estimate of such warranty related costs is reviewed annually. A provision is recognized for expected warranty claims on products sold, based on past
experience of the level of repairs and returns. Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties are based on current sales levels and current
information available about returns. The Company generally offers 12 - 24 months of warranty for its products.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company. It includes a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. It also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it
cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.



h. Taxes 

i. Cash and Cash equivalents

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Current Income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and
generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at

the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the cash management.



j. Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date is disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

Block of Assets                                    Useful Life
Building                                                  30 years
Plant and machinery                               5-15 years *
Furniture and fixtures                            5 years
Office equipment                                   5 years
Vehicles                                                  5 years #
Technical knowhow                               5 years
Computer software                                3 years
Computers                                              3 years

The management has estimated, supported by independent assessment by professionals, the useful lives of the following classes of assets.
* The useful lives of plant and equipment used in manufacture of steering columns are estimated as 9 years. These lives are higher than those indicated in
schedule II.
# Vehicles are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of 5 years, which are lower than those indicated in schedule II.

Intangible assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as of April 1, 2016 (the transition date)
measured as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at
cost (net of duty / tax credit availed) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost
includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred. 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

The Company identifies and determines cost of asset significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different from that of the life
of the principal asset. 

Depreciation on Property , Plant and Equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the
management. The Company has used the following useful life to provide depreciation on its fixed assets.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately, is capitalised and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Software / technical knowhow are capitalised where it is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits. Software capitalisation cost includes license
fees. Costs incurred towards purchase of computer software are amortised using the straight-line method over a period based on management's estimate of
useful lives of such software being 3 years. Technical know-how is amortised over a period of 5 years. Intangible assets that are not yet available for us as at
the reporting date are classified under “Intangible Assets under development".

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2016 (the transition date) measured as per
the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-
recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.



Impairment of tangible and intangible assets carried at cost

 The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the 
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

k. Borrowing costs

l. Leases

 m. Right-of-use assets

 •Buildings                                     3-7 years
 •Plant and machinery                    3-22 years

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section Impairment of non-financial assets.

 ii) Lease Liabilities

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-
use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
assets, as follows:

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into Cash-Generating Units (CGUs). Each CGU represents
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to
the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and 
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.



 iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

i. Defined contribution plan
 - Provident Fund

 - Super Annuation Fund
This is a defined contribution Plan. The company contributes sum equivalent to certain specified percentages of the eligible annual salaries based on the 
options exercised by the eligible employees to Superannuation Fund administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The
Company has no further obligations for future superannuation benefits other than its annual contribution and recognizes such contribution as expense as and 
when due.
ii. Defined benefit plan
 -  Gratuity

iii. Other employment benefits
 -  Compensated absence

o. Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent measurement

in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the provident fund are charged to the statement of
profit and loss for the year when the contributions to the respective fund are due. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
provident fund.

Gratuity liability under Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 is a defined benefit obligation. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five
years of service gets a gratuity on separation at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with Life Insurance
Corporation of India. Gratuity is provided for, on the basis of an actuarial valuation done as per the projected unit credit method as at the end of each financial
year. 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. 
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the
expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such
long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains /
losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
    -  at amortised cost
    -  at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
    -  fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)



Financial Assets at amortised cost

The company does not have any financial assets that are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial Assets at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any Financial Asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is
classified as at FVTPL.

Financial Assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

Impairment of financial assets
 All financial assets classified as at amortised cost shall be tested for impairment under Ind AS 109 and measured using Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model.

A ‘Financial Asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and
the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IND AS 109.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
The Company recognizes financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are recognized at
fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are
adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from
the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.



p. Earnings Per Share

q. Non- Current Assets held for Sale
The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing
use. 

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets are available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of such assets and its sale is highly probable. The Company treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when: 

(a) The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset;
(b) An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated; 
(c) The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value
(d) The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification; and

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets once classified as
held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS – 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 – 
Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and 
based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

As at March 31, 2025, there are no Ind AS Standards/amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, if any.



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Crores of Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

3      Property, Plant & Equipment

Particulars Freehold Land Buildings Plant and equipment
Computers 

and Accessories
Furniture and 

Fixtures
Office Equipments Vehicles  Total 

Gross carrying value
 As at April 01, 2023 32.25                          41.67                                430.22                             5.82                         2.45                         5.47                         0.57                         518.45                                

Additions -                                 1.92                                  44.21                               2.63                         0.07                         1.40                         0.59                         50.82                                  
Disposals -                                 (0.12)                                 (7.14)                                (0.08)                        (0.16)                        (0.30)                        -                               (7.80)                                   

 As at March 31, 2024 32.25                          43.47                                467.29                             8.37                         2.36                         6.57                         1.16                         561.47                                
Additions -                                 1.08                                  16.81                               1.09                         -                               0.20                         0.08                         19.26                                  
Disposals -                                 -                                        (5.04)                                (0.38)                        -                               -                               (0.57)                        (5.99)                                   
Reclassified as Assets held for Sale (26.13)                        (26.13)                                 

 As at March 31, 2025 6.12                            44.55                                479.06                             9.08                         2.36                         6.77                         0.67                         548.61                                

Accumulated Depreciation
 As at April 01, 2023 -                                 15.64                                254.10                             4.55                         1.97                         3.51                         0.47                         280.24                                

Depreciation expense -                                 3.11                                  42.75                               0.90                         0.19                         1.14                         0.08                         48.17                                  
Disposals -                                 (0.06)                                 (6.91)                                (0.08)                        (0.16)                        (0.30)                        -                               (7.51)                                   

 As at March 31, 2024 -                                 18.69                                289.94                             5.37                         2.00                         4.35                         0.55                         320.90                                
Depreciation expense -                                 2.67                                  41.49                               1.20                         0.11                         1.20                         0.15                         46.82                                  
Disposals -                                 -                                        (5.00)                                (0.37)                        -                               -                               (0.57)                        (5.94)                                   

 As at March 31, 2025 -                                 21.36                                326.43                             6.20                         2.11                         5.55                         0.13                         361.78                                

Carrying value
 As at March 31, 2024 32.25                          24.78                                177.35                             3.00                         0.36                         2.22                         0.61                         240.57                                

 As at March 31, 2025 6.12                            23.19                                152.63                             2.88                         0.25                         1.22                         0.54                         186.83                                

3.1 All title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

3.2 Refer note 31.a for capital commitments

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Crores of Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

4  Intangible Assets

Gross carrying value
 As at April 01, 2023 2.97                                         3.77                              6.74                       

Additions -                                               1.85                              1.85                       
Disposals -                                               -                                   -                             

 As at March 31, 2024 2.97                                         5.62                              8.59                       
Additions -                                               1.59                              1.59                       
Disposals -                                               -                                   -                             

 As at March 31, 2025 2.97                                         7.21                              10.18                     

Accumulated Amortisation
 As at April 01, 2023 2.96                                         3.23                              6.19                       

Amortisation -                                               0.58                              0.58                       
Disposals -                                               -                                   -                             

 As at March 31, 2024 2.96                                         3.81                              6.77                       
Amortisation -                                               1.10                              1.10                       
Disposals -                                               -                                   -                             

 As at March 31, 2025 2.96                                         4.91                              7.87                       

Carrying value
 As at March 31, 2024 0.01                                         1.81                              1.82                       

 As at March 31, 2025 0.01                                         2.30                              2.31                       

4a Capital Work-in Progress

As at 31st March 2024
Ageing details
Particulars <  1 year   1 to 2 years    2-3  years   > 3 years  Total 
 Project in Progress                                           7.80                               0.09                            -   -                     7.89                      
 Project temporarily suspended                                               -                                     -                              -                           -   -                       
Total CWIP                                           7.80                               0.09                            -                           -                         7.89 

As at 31st March 2025
Ageing details
Particulars <  1 year   1 to 2 years    2-3  years   > 3 years  Total 
 Project in Progress                                         36.01                                   -                              -   -                     36.01                    
 Project temporarily suspended                                               -                                     -                              -                           -   -                       

Total CWIP                                         36.01                                   -                              -                           -                       36.01 

CWIP

Projects in progress <  1 year   1 to 2 years    2-3  years   > 3 years  Total 
Gen-III Traceability                                           0.50                                   -                              -                           -   0.50                      
Capacity Enhancement                                           1.13 1.13                      
Quality Upgradation                                           0.16 0.16                      
Modernisation                                           0.03 0.03                      

Projects temporarily suspended                                               -                                     -                              -                           -                             -   

As at March 31, 2024                                           1.82                                   -                              -                           -                         1.82 

Projects in progress <  1 year   1 to 2 years    2-3  years   > 3 years  Total 
Gen-III Traceability                                           0.02                                   -                              -                           -   0.02                      
Capacity Enhancement                                           2.22 2.22                      
Modernisation                                           1.74 1.74                      

Projects temporarily suspended                                               -                                     -                              -                           -                             -   

As at March 31, 2025                                           3.98                                   -                              -                           -                         3.98 

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

Particulars Technical knowhow  Software Licence  Total 

 To be completed in 

The Company does not have any capital work-in-progress that has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan. Capital work-in-progress includes certain projects 
whose completion is overdue.Expected completion schedule of such projects are as follows :

Capital work in progress as at March 31, 2025 comprises expenditure for the plant & machinery in various stages of installation. Total amount of Capital work in progress is INR 
36.01 Crores (March 31, 2024: INR 7.89 Crores).

Amount in CWIP for a  period of

Amount in CWIP for a  period of



4b Right-of-use assets

Gross carrying value
 As at April 01, 2023 2.39                                         17.00                            19.39                     

Additions -                                           -                               -                         
Disposals -                                           5.96                              5.96                       

 As at March 31, 2024 2.39                                         11.04                            13.43                     
Additions -                                           9.65                              9.65                       
Disposals -                                           1.66                              1.66                       

 As at March 31, 2025 2.39                                         19.03                            21.42                     

Accumulated Amortisation

 As at April 01, 2023 0.36                                         9.89                              10.25                     
Depreciaton expense 0.11                                         3.40                              3.51                       
Disposals -                                           5.96                              5.96                       

 As at March 31, 2024 0.47                                         7.33                              7.80                       
Depreciaton expense 0.11                                         3.57                              3.68                       
Disposals -                                           1.13                              1.13                       

 As at March 31, 2025 0.58                                         9.76                              10.34                     

Carrying value
 As at April 01, 2023 2.03                                         7.11                              9.14                       

 As at March 31, 2024 1.92                                         3.72                              5.64                       

 As at March 31, 2025 1.81                                         9.27                              11.08                     

Also refer note 37 - Leases

4c Intangible Assets under development

As at 31st March 2024

Particulars <  1 year   1 to 2 years    2-3  years   > 3 years  Total 
 Project in Progress                                               -                                     -                              -   -                     -                       
 Project temporarily suspended                                               -                                     -                              -                           -   -                       

Total Intangible assets under development                                               -                                     -                              -                           -                             -   

As at 31st March 2025

Particulars <  1 year   1 to 2 years    2-3  years   > 3 years  Total 
 Project in Progress                                         22.65                                   -                              -   -                     22.65                    
 Project temporarily suspended                                               -                                     -                              -                           -   -                       

Total Intangible assets under development                                         22.65                                   -                              -                           -                       22.65 

4d Non-Current Assets held for Sale

The major classes of Assets classified as held for sale as at March 31, 2025 as follows

Assets
 As at 

31st March 2025 
 As at 

31st March 2024 
Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land 26.13                                       -                               
Assets held for Sale 26.13                                       -                               

Summary of Carrying Value
 As at 

31st March 2025 
 As at 

31st March 2024 
Property, plant and equipment 186.83                                     240.57                          
Capital work-in-progress 36.01                                       7.89                              
Intangible assets 2.31                                         1.82                              
Intangible assets under development 22.65                                       -                               
Right-of-use assets 11.08                                       5.64                              

258.88                                     255.92                          

Intangible assets under development as at March 31, 2025 represents expenditure incurred for acquisition of technical knowhow under various stages of absorption and hence, are 
not yet fully available for use as at the reporting date. Total amount of Intangible assets under development is INR 22.65 Crores (March 31, 2024: INR Nil )

The Company does not have any Intangible Assets under development that has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan or whose completion is overdue.

Pursuant to the decision taken by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on January 28, 2025  as part of its strategy of monetization of non-core assets, the Company has re-
classified one of its land parcels to “Non-Current Assets held for Sale” effective from the said date. As at March 31, 2025, no adjustment to the carrying amount is considered 
necessary, as fair value less costs to sell exceeds the carrying amount. The sale transaction has been concluded subsequent to the year end. 

Particulars Plant and Machinery  Buildings  Total 

Right-of-use assets as at March 31, 2025 comprises of Building and Plant & machinery. Total amount of Right-of-use assets is INR 11.08 
Crores (March 31, 2024: INR 5.64). (Refer Note 37)



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Crores of Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

5.1       Investments

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Unquoted equity shares
150,000 (March 31,2024: 1,50,000) equity shares of Capsol Energy Private Limited 
of ₹ 10 each

                             0.15                               0.15 

900 (March 31,2024: 900) equity shares of Shree MTK Textiles Private Limited of ₹ 
100 each

                             0.29                               0.29 

                             0.44                               0.44 
Current                                   -                                     - 
Non-Current                              0.44                               0.44 

5.2 Other financial assets (non-current)
(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Security deposits paid                              5.07                               2.91 
Other advances - considered doubtful                              0.15                               0.15 
 Less: Impairment for doubtful Advances                            (0.15)                              (0.15)
Total financial assets (non-current) carried at amortised cost                              5.07                               2.91 

6.1 Other non-current assets 

(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Prepayments for land lease                              0.76                               0.77 
Capital advances                              6.65                               2.44 

Total other non-current assets                              7.41                               3.21 

6.2 Other current assets

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated

Balances with government authorities                              7.16                               2.11 
Prepaid expenses                              3.76                               3.39 
Other current assets                              0.65                               0.55 
Total Other current assets                            11.57                               6.05 

6.3 Income tax assets (Net)

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Income tax refund / TDS Receivable (net of provisions)                              9.86                               9.51 

                             9.86                               9.51 

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)



7 Inventories (at lower of cost and net realisable value)
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Raw materials (In transit: March 31, 2025: Rs.16.41 Cr, March 31, 2024: Rs. 16.19 
Cr)

                           66.56                             69.06 

Work-in progress                            10.20                               7.49 
Finished goods*                            27.57                             24.17 
Stores and Spares                            12.43                             18.60 
Tooling Inventories                              1.64                               0.71 
Total 118.40                         120.03                          

*includes goods in transit

7.1       

7.2       

7.3       The mode of valuation of inventories has been stated in Note 2.2.e.

8 Trade receivables

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Trade receivables 208.40                         205.94                          
Receivables from related parties (Note 32) 7.05                            9.18                              
Total trade receivables 215.45                         215.12                          

Break up for security details
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 215.45                         215.12                          
Secured, considered good -                                  -                                   
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk -                                  -                                   
Trade Receivables - credit impaired 0.50                            0.50                              

215.95                         215.62                          

Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Unsecured, considered good                                 -                                     -   
Secured, considered good                                 -                                     -   
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk                                 -                                     -   
Trade Receivables - credit impaired                            (0.50)                              (0.50)

                           (0.50)                              (0.50)

Total trade receivables(net) 215.45                         215.12                          

8.1 Trade Receivables

Movement in Expected Credit Loss allowance
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Balance at beginning of the year                              0.50                               0.50 
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables                                   -                                     - 
Amount written off during the year                                   -                                     - 
Balance at end of the year 0.50                            0.50                              

The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision

matrix. The range of provision created as a percentage of outstanding under various age groups below 180 days/ 270 days past due (as

the case maybe) ranges between 0.00% and 5.76% (March 31, 2024: 0.07% and 37.17%). The impact of change in the days past due

criteria in estimating the provision for expected credit loss in the current year, as stated above, is not material.

c) Actual amount of outstanding receivables greater than 180 days/ 270 days for domestic customer/ export customers (till March 31,
2024 – 120 days for both customers groups) as on the reporting date.

b) Past trend of the actual amount of bad debts written off over a rolling period of past 24 months.

The cost of inventories recognized as expenses includes INR 5.71 Cr (during 2023-24: INR 0.67 Cr ) in respect of (reversals) / write-

downs of inventory to net realizable value. During the current year, the company has revised its methodology for estimating the net

realisable value in respect of spares inventory and accordingly, the amount recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2025 is higher by Rs. 5.09 Crores 

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision 
matrix.

The cost of inventories recognized as an expense during the year is disclosed in Note 21, 22 and under relevant heads in 26.

The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience based on :

a) Past trend of outstanding receivables > 180 days/ 270 days for domestic customer/ export customers over a rolling period of past 24
months (till March 31, 2024 – 120 days for both customers groups over a rolling period of past 24 months).



8.2 Trade Receivables ageing schedule

Trade Receivables- Ageing
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

A) Undisputed Trade receivables
Considered good:

Not due                          205.40                           206.89 
up to 6 months                            10.48                               8.73 
6 months to 1 year                              0.07                                   -   
1-2 years                                   -   
2 -3 years                                   -   
more than 3 years                                   -   
Total                          215.95                           215.62 

Which have significant increase in credit risk:
Not due                                 -                                     -   
up to 6 months                                 -                                     -   
6 months to 1 year                                 -                                     -   
1-2 years                                 -                                     -   
2 -3 years                                 -                                     -   
more than 3 years                                 -                                     -   
Total                                   -                                     - 

Less: Credit impaired:
Not due                              0.49                               0.25 
up to 6 months                              0.01                               0.25 
6 months to 1 year                                 -                                     -   
1-2 years                                 -                                     -   
2 -3 years                                 -                                     -   
more than 3 years                                 -                                     -   
Total                              0.50                               0.50 

Total Undisputed Trade Receivables (A)                          215.45                           215.12 

B) Disputed Trade receivables
Considered good:

Not due                                 -                                     -   
up to 6 months                                 -                                     -   
6 months to 1 year                                 -                                     -   
1-2 years                                 -                                     -   
2 -3 years                                 -                                     -   
more than 3 years                                 -                                     -   
Total                                   -                                     - 

Which have significant increase in credit risk:
Not due                                 -                                     -   
up to 6 months                                 -                                     -   
6 months to 1 year                                 -                                     -   
1-2 years                                 -                                     -   
2 -3 years                                 -                                     -   
more than 3 years                                 -                                     -   
Total                                   -                                     - 

Less :Credit impaired:
Not due                                 -                                     -   
up to 6 months                                 -                                     -   
6 months to 1 year                                 -                                     -   
1-2 years                                 -                                     -   
2 -3 years                                 -                                     -   
more than 3 years                                 -                                     -   
Total                                   -                                     - 

Total Disputed Trade Receivables (B)                                   -                                     - 
Total Trade Receivables (A+B)                          215.45                           215.12 

ECL Disclosure
Estimated gross carrying amount at default

Current 209.53                         209.91                          
1-30 days 6.30                            3.49                              
31-60 days -                              1.69                              
61-90 days 0.03                            0.50                              
91-120 days 0.00                            0.03                              
121-180 days 0.09                            -                               
more than 180 days -                              -                               

Total                          215.95                           215.62 
ECL-simplified approach

Current (ECL 2025-0.00% : 2024-0.07%) 0.49                            0.26                              
1-30 days (ECL 2025-0.05% : 2024-0.96%) 0.00                            0.03                              
31-60 days (ECL 2025-0.50% : 2024-6.00%) -                              0.10                              
61-90 days (ECL 2025-1.37% : 2024-20.13%) 0.00                            0.10                              
91-120 days (ECL 2025-2.69% : 2024-37.17%) 0.00                            0.01                              
121-180 days (ECL 2025-5.76% : 2024-100%) 0.01                            -                               
more than 180 days (ECL 2025-100% : 2024-100%) -                              -                               

Total                              0.50                               0.50 
Net carrying amount                          215.45                           215.12 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days based on the type of customer. No trade or other 
receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. For terms and 
conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 32. 



9 Other financial assets (current)

(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Rent deposit                              0.02                               0.09 
Claims receivable                              0.09                               0.05 

Total Other financial assets (current)                              0.11                               0.14 

9.1 Loans
(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)  As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Loans and advances to employees                              0.43                               0.21 

Total loans                              0.43                               0.21 

10 Cash and cash equivalents

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

(i) Balances with banks:
– In current accounts                              0.05                               0.35 
– Deposits with original maturity of less than three months                                   -                                     - 
Cash on hand                              0.00                               0.00 

0.05                            0.35                              

For the purpose of statement of cashflows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

In current accounts                              0.05                               0.35 
Cash on hand                              0.00                               0.00 

0.05                            0.35                              

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
Current borrowings

Opening 325.00                         306.00                          
Cash flows (150.95) 19.00
Closing 174.05 325.00

Current lease liabilities (refer Note 17a)
Opening 2.55                            3.82                              
Others 0.80 (1.27)
Closing 3.35 2.55

Non-current borrowings
Opening -                              -                               
Cash flows 50.00 0.00
Closing 50.00 0.00

Non-current lease liabilities (refer Note 17a)
Opening 4.02                            6.57                              
Others 4.48 (2.55)
Closing 8.50 4.02

Total changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (95.67) 15.18

Break up of Financial assets carried at amortised cost
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Trade receivables 215.45                         215.12                          
Cash and cash equivalents 0.05                            0.35                              
Loans 0.43                            0.21                              
Other financial assets-Current 0.11                            0.14                              
Other financial assets-Non-current 5.07                            2.91                              

221.11                         218.73                          

At March 31, 2025, the Company has  available limit of Rs.0.95 Cr (March 31, 2024: Rs.75 Cr) of undrawn committed borrowing 
facilities.



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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11 Equity share capital

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Authorised:
1,80,00,000 (March 31,2024: 1,80,00,000) equity shares of INR 10 each 18.00                   18.00                   

Increase/decrease during the year -                           -                           
18.00                   18.00                   

Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid up
1,79,00,000 (March 31,2024: 1,79,00,000) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up 17.90                   17.90                   

17.90                   17.90                   

(i) Term/ Rights attached to equity shares

(ii) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

No of shares Amount
As at April 01, 2023 1,79,00,000          17.90                   
Issued during the year -                        -                        

 As at March 31, 2024 1,79,00,000          17.90                   
Issued during the year -                        -                        

 As at March 31, 2025 1,79,00,000          17.90                   

(iii) Shares held by holding company
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company are as below:

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held by: Number Amount Number Amount
Rane Holdings Limited* 1,79,00,000          17.90                   87,71,000             8.77                     
NSK Ltd, Japan -                        -                       91,29,000             9.13                     

1,79,00,000          17.90                   1,79,00,000          17.90                   

* Refer Note 1 -Corporate Information on shareholding change

(iv) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Company:

Name of shareholder No. of Shares
% against total 

no of shares
No. of Shares

% against total 
no of shares

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up held by:
Rane Holdings Limited* 1,79,00,000         100% 87,71,000            49%
NSK Ltd, Japan -                           0% 91,29,000            51%
* Refer Note 1 -Corporate Information on Shareholding change

(v) Details of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year:
 As at March 31, 2024

No. of Shares

No. of Shares
% against total 

no of shares
No. of Shares

% against total 
no of shares

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up held by:
Rane Holdings Limited 1,79,00,000         100% 87,71,000            49%
NSK Ltd, Japan -                           -                       91,29,000            51%

(vi)  Information regarding issue of shares in the last five years
(a) The Company has not issued any shares without payment being received in cash.
(b) The Company has not issued any bonus shares.
(c ) The Company has not undertaken any buy-back of shares.
(d) The Company has not issued any stock options or warrants.

Apart from the above, there are no shares held by the ultimate holding Company, or their subsidiaries or associates.

Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about the assumptions 
and estimates may result in outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities in future periods.

 As at March 31, 2024

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

 As at March 31, 2025

As per records of the Company, including its register of members, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships 
of shares.

No. of Shares
 As at March 31, 2025

Name of shareholder

 As at March 31, 2024

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of INR 10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote 
per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subjected to the 
approval of the shareholder in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the assets of the Company, in proportion 
to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 As at March 31, 2025



12 Other equity

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

General reserve 207.41                 207.41                 
Securities premium 17.10                   17.10                   
Retained earnings (158.20)                (229.10)                

Total other equity 66.31                   (4.59)                    

Particulars Amount
General reserve

 As at April 01, 2023 207.41                 
Add: Amount transferred during the year -                           

 As at March 31, 2024 207.41                 
Add: Amount transferred during the year -                           

 As at March 31, 2025 207.41                 

General Reserve

Securities premium

 As at April 01, 2023 17.10                   
Add: Amount transferred during the year -                           

 As at March 31, 2024 17.10                   
Add: Amount transferred during the year -                           

 As at March 31, 2025 17.10                   

Retained earnings
 As at April 01, 2023 (239.09)                

Add: Profit for the year 10.48                   
Less : Other Comprehensive income /(loss) (0.49)                    
Less: Amount transferred to general reserve -                           

 As at March 31, 2024 (229.10)                
Add: Profit for the year 71.29                   
Less : Other Comprehensive income /(loss) (0.39)                    
Less: Amount transferred to general reserve -                           

 As at March 31, 2025 (158.20)                

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents profits generated and retained by the Company post distribution of dividends to the equity shareholders in 
the respective years, if any. The balance in retained earnings can be utilized for distribution of dividend by the Company considering the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

Under the erstwhile Companies Act,1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage
in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a dividend ddistribution in a given year is
more than 10% of the paid up capital of the company for that year, then the total dividend distribution is less than tht total distributable
results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of
the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be utilised
only in accordance with the specific requirements of Companies Act,2013.

Securities Premium - The Securities premium represents the premium received towards allotment of shares in the previous years. This
balance will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of Section 52 of the Companies Act towards issuance of fully paid bonus shares,
write-off of preliminary expenses, commission / discount expenses on issue of shares / debentures, premium payable on redemption of
redeemable preference shares / debentures and buy back of its own shares / securities under Section 68 of the Companies Act.



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Crores of Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

13 Borrowings

Non-current borrowings
Term Loans from banks -                          -                             

Term Loans from Others
Term Loans from Related Parties                        50.00                                -   

50.00                       -                             
Total non-current borrowings 50.00                       -                             

Current borrowings

Loans from banks                      174.05                         325.00 
Total current borrowings 174.05                     325.00                       

Net Current Borrowings 174.05                     325.00                       

Aggregate Unsecured loans                        50.00 -                                 
Aggregate Secured loans 174.05                     325.00                       

Terms of repayment of Current and Non current borrowings

As at March 31, 2025
Name of the Lender

Rane Holdings Limited

ICICI Bank Ltd

As at March 31, 2024
Name of the Lender

Mizuho Bank Ltd

MUFG Bank Ltd

Term Loans

Term Loans

Interest to be serviced at  monthly 

intervals. Principal to be repaid on 

bullet basis at the end of 3 years from 

the date of each tranche.

Woring capital demand loans / Cash 
Credit

-

-

Interest to be serviced at  monthly 

intervals. Principal in respect of 

Working capital demand loan (WCDL) 

to be repaid on bullet basis or otherwise 

as per the tenor of each WCDL. As per 

the terms of sanction, the lender has a 

right to require the repayment of entire 

loan on demand

Woring capital demand loans

Interest to be serviced at monthly

intervals. Principal to be repaid on bullet

basis or otherwise as per the terms of the 

sanction. As per the terms of sanction,

the lender has a right to require the

repayment of entire loan on demand

Interest to be serviced at  monthly 

intervals. Principal to be repaid on bullet 

basis or otherwise as per the terms of the 

sanction. As per the terms of sanction, 

the lender has a right to require the 

repayment of entire loan on demand

Short term loans

-

-

Short term loans

Interest to be serviced at  monthly intervals. 

Principal to be repaid on bullet basis or 

otherwise as per the terms of the sanction. As 

per the terms of sanction, the lender has a 

right to require the repayment of entire loan 

on demand

Interest to be serviced at  monthly intervals. 

Principal to be repaid on bullet basis or 

otherwise as per the terms of the sanction.

As at 
March 31, 2024

Secured loans include cash credit and working capital demand loans (as at March 31, 2025 - short term loans and working capital demands loans) from 
banks

The Secured Loans outstanding as at March 31, 2025 are secured by way of exclusive charge on current assets and movable fixed assets of the Company 
(as at March 31, 2024 - Guaranteed by NSK Limited, Japan)

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

As at 
March 31, 2025

-

-



13.1 There has been no default as on Balance Sheet date in repayment of borrowings and interest.

Quarter Bank Name Particulars
 Amount as reported 
in the statement 
submitted to bank 

Amount as per 
Books of 
account

 Amount of 
difference 

Reason for difference

Trade receivable 216.95                       215.45             1.51                         

Impact of regrouping

of certain debtor

balances at the time of

account finalisation
Trade payable 288.00                       273.05             14.95                       Amount reported to 

Mar-25 ICICI Bank

13.4 Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company for the sanctioned working capital loans with banks along with 
reconciliation and reasons for difference is as follows:

13.3 The interest rate for loans range from 8.40%  p.a to 9.00% p.a  ( March 31, 2024 : 9.42% p.a to 10.02 p.a) incase of Current borrowings .Interest 
rate for Term loan is 9.55%  (March 31, 2024- Nil)

13.2 The Company has used the borrowings from banks availed during the year for the specific purpose for which it was taken.
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14 Provisions

Current- Provisions
A) Provision for employee benefits

Provision for leave encashment                                     1.96                                     1.76 
Provision for gratuity                                     1.20                                     0.90 

B) Provision for warranty                                   29.20                                   36.60 
Total Provisions 32.36                                 39.26                                 

Non Current- Provisions
A) Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity                                     2.79                                     2.38 
Provision for leave encashment                                     5.93                                     4.92 

Total Provisions 8.72                                   7.30                                   

Provision for warranties
At the beginning of the year 36.60 81.89
Created during the year 3.90                                   4.35                                   
Utilized during the year 11.30                                 49.65                                 
At the end of the year 29.20                                 36.60                                 

Provision for warranty

15 Deferred Tax (Asset) / Liability

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
On difference between book balance and tax balance of property, plant
and equipment

(3.15)                                  0.09                                   

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision for bonus (0.69)                                  (0.95)                                  
Provision for  leave encashment (1.99)                                  (2.34)                                  
Provision for gratuity (1.00)                                  (1.15)                                  
Provision for Voluntary retirement scheme expenses (0.03)                                  -                                     
Provision for warranty (2.50)                                  (2.83)                                  
Provision for bad debts/others (0.55)                                  (0.76)                                  
Provision for Ind AS 116 (0.24)                                  (0.31)                                  
Provision for unabsorbed depreciation (0.17)                                  (53.00)                                
Net Deferred Tax (Asset) / Liability (10.32)                                (61.25)                                

Reconciliation of deferred tax (Asset) / Liability
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024

Opening Balance (61.25)                                (45.33)                                
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in Profit
or loss

51.06                                 (15.65)                                

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI (0.13)                                  (0.27)                                  
Closing Balance (10.32)                                (61.25)                                

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2024

The provision for warranty obligations is recognised once the products are sold. The estimated provision takes into account
historical information, frequency and average cost of warranty claims and the estimate regarding possible future incidence of
claims. The outstanding provision for product warranties as at the reporting date is the balance unexpired period of the
respective warranties on the various products which range from 12 to 24 months.

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

The Company is carrying provisions of Rs 19.00 Crores as at March 31, 2025, towards contractual special warranty

obligations. The management has determined such provision based on various inputs including technical estimates, rate of

product returns, etc. Based on its assessment management believes that the provision carried by the Company as at March 31,

2025, is adequate. Also refer Note No. 27 regarding scrap sale of goods returned in relation to such claims.



16 Trade Payables

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Trade Payables
Dues to Micro & Small  Enterprises (refer note 35) 5.58                                   10.32                                 
Dues to Related Party (refer note 32) 0.17                               50.28                             
Dues to other than Micro & Small Enterprises                                 267.30                                 202.16 

273.05                               262.76                               

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

Trade Payables- Ageing (Undisputed)
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024

Dues to Micro & Small Enterprises
Not due                                     5.14                                     7.85 
Up to 1 year                                     0.44                                     2.47 
1-2 years                                         -                                           -   
2 -3 years                                         -                                           -   
more than 3 years                                         -                                           -   
Total                                     5.58                                   10.32 

Dues to other than Micro & Small Enterprises 
Not due                                 242.27                                 199.16 
Up to 1 year                                   25.20                                   53.28 
1-2 years                                         -                                           -   
2 -3 years                                         -                                           -   
more than 3 years                                         -                                           -   
Total                                 267.47                                 252.44 

Total Trade Payables                                 273.05                                 262.76 

17 Other Financial Liabilities (current)

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Creditors for capital goods 18.14                                 11.25                                 
Interest accrued but not due -                                     0.11                                   
Interest Accrued & Due 0.07                                   -                                     
Security Deposits received 0.33                                   0.36                                   
Employee dues 3.04                                   3.02                                   
Total other financial liabilities at amortised cost 21.58                                 14.74                                 

Total other financial liabilities 21.58                                 14.74                                 

17a Lease liabilities

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Lease liability  (Refer Note 37) 3.35                                   2.55                                   
Total lease liabilities (Current) 3.35                                   2.55                                   

Lease liability  (Refer Note 37) 8.50                                   4.02                                   
Total lease liabilities (Non-Current) 8.50                                   4.02                                   

*There are no trade payables that are overdue on account of any outstanding legal disputes.

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-60-days term for domestic vendors and 60 to 90 days
term for import vendors. For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 32.



18 Other Current Liabilities

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Statutory dues 1.83                                   5.77                                   
Advance from customers 1.47                                   0.43                                   
Advance for sale of land* 5.00                                   -                                     
Total Other Current Liabilities 8.30                                   6.20                                   

Break up of Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024

  Borrowings 174.05                               325.00                               
  Lease liabilities 3.35                                   2.55                                   
  Trade payables 273.05                               262.76                               
  Other financial liabilities-Current 21.58                                 14.74                                 
  Other financial liabilities-Non-current 8.50                                   4.02                                   

480.53                               609.07                               

*Represents advance received towards sale of land classified as held for sale . Refer Note 4d
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19 Revenue from operations
Year ended

March 31, 2025
Year ended

March 31, 2024

Sale of products
Steering Columns 1,684.77                   1,703.88               
Sale of tools 16.35                        7.13                      

Total (A) 1,701.12                   1,711.01               

Sale of Services
Income from services 1.78                          2.94                      

Total (B) 1.78                          2.94                      

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales (Net) 3.42                          4.73                      
Government grant - Export incentive 0.01                          0.05                      

Total (C) 3.43                          4.78                      

Total (A + B + C) 1,706.33                   1,718.73               

Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Timing of revenue recognition 

Goods transferred at a point in time                    1,704.55                1,715.79 

Services transferred over time                           1.78                       2.94 
Total revenue from contracts with customers                    1,706.33                1,718.73 

Break of Revenue
In India                    1,692.34                1,706.85 
Outside India 13.99                                           11.88 
Total revenue from contracts with customers                    1,706.33                1,718.73 

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
Revenue as per contracted price                    1,707.45                1,720.01 
Adjustments:
Discount (0.00)                        (0.00)                    
Sales return (1.12)                        (1.28)                    
Revenue from Contract with customers                    1,706.33                1,718.73 

Contract Balances

Particulars
Year ended

March 31, 2025
Year ended

March 31, 2024

Receivables, included under trade receivables (Refer Note 8) 215.45                     215.12                 
Contract liabilities included under advance from customers( Refer Note 18) 1.47                         0.43                     

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

Government grants have been received for export of goods. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these 
grants.

The performance obligation with respect to sale of steering columns is satisfied upon delivery of the steering columns and 
acceptance of customer. Payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery. 

 The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with 
customers: 



20 Other Income

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest received on Bank deposits 0.12                          0.08                      
Interest on Tax refund received 0.08                          -                           
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.20                          -                           
Net Gain on Foreign exchange fluctuation 0.51                          3.41                      
Provisions no longer required written back 0.36                          5.07                      
Miscellaneous income 0.45                          0.51                      

1.72                          9.07                      

21 Cost of materials & components consumed

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Opening stock of raw materials 69.06                        93.03                    
Add: Purchases for the year 1,401.60                   1,335.66               
Less: Closing stock of raw materials 66.56                        69.05                    

Sub-contracting charges 14.32                        12.84                    
Cost of raw material and components consumed 1,418.42                   1,372.48               

Consumption based accounting is followed for the issue of materials and accordingly purchase is a derived figure.

22 Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade  and work-in-progress

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Closing stock
Finished Goods 27.57                        24.17                    
Work-in-progress 10.20                        7.48                      

37.77                        31.65                    
Opening stock

Finished Goods 24.17                        22.55                    
Work-in-progress 7.48                          10.62                    

31.65                        33.17                    

Net (increase) / decrease (6.12)                        1.52                      

23 Employee benefits expense

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Salaries, wages and bonus 86.86                        84.71                    
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 30) 4.95                          4.45                      
Gratuity expense (Refer Note 30) 1.44                          1.22                      
Staff welfare expenses 16.39                        15.80                    
Total 109.64                      106.18                  



24 Finance costs

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Borrowing Cost on Finacial Liabilties carried at amortized cost
Interest on Term loans (Refer Note 32)                           1.00                           -   
Interest on Working Capital loans from Banks                         24.97                     31.83 
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note 37)                           0.95                       0.69 
Total 26.92                        32.52                    

25 Depreciation and amortization expense

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Depreciation of Property, Plant and equipment (Refer Note 3)                         46.82                     48.17 
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer Note 4)                           1.10                       0.58 
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer Note 37)                           3.68                       3.51 
Total 51.60                        52.26                    

26 Other expenses

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Consumption of stores and spares (Refer Note 7)                         40.33                     37.62 
Power and fuel                         11.55                     11.26 
Rental expenses (Refer Note 37)                           0.66                       1.11 
Repairs and maintenance

-Plant & Machinery                         10.94                     11.21 
-Buildings                           2.38                       2.15 
-Others                           0.44                       0.49 

Packing and Freight                         26.41                     31.33 
Royalty expense (Refer note 32)                         34.95                     31.29 
Trademark (Refer note 32)                               -                       17.04 
Rates and taxes                           1.72                       2.22 
Insurance                           5.01                       4.84 
Travelling and conveyance                           3.64                       3.50 
Legal and professional fees (Refer note 32)                           9.15                       9.11 
Audit Fees (Refer note 26.1)                           0.28                       0.20 
Information Systems expenses (Refer note 32)                           6.83                       5.84 
Postage and Telecom expenses                           0.52                       0.64 
Printing & Stationary                           0.25                       0.29 
Net Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment                               -                         0.19 
Warranty expenses (Refer note 14)                           3.90                       4.35 
Donation                           0.05                           -   
CSR expenses(Refer Note 26.2)                           0.15                       0.25 
Miscellaneous expenses                           2.07                       2.10 
Total 161.23                      177.03                  



26.1 Payment to Auditors

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

As auditor:
Audit fee                           0.12                       0.10 
Tax audit fee                           0.02                       0.02 
Limited reviews                           0.08                       0.08 

In other capacity:
Other certification work                           0.05                           -   
Certification fees                           0.01                       0.00 

Total 0.28                          0.20                      

26.2 Details of CSR expenditure

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year -                           0.00
Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 0.15                          0.25

Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2025

In Cash
Yet to be 

paid In Cash
(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset -                           -                       
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 0.15                          -                       

Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2024

In Cash
Yet to be 

paid In Cash
(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset -                           -                       
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 0.25 0.00

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

In case of S. 135(5) Excess amount spent
Opening Balance (Excess spent) (0.75)                        (0.50)                    
Amount required to be spent during the year -                           -                       
Amount spent during the year 0.15                          0.25                      
Amount lapsed during the year 0.35                          
Closing Balance (Excess spent)* (0.55)                        (0.75)                    

* Not recognised as asset in the books of accounts

26.3 Research and Development Costs

27A Exceptional items
Exceptional item

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Scrap sales of warranty parts -                           (9.07)                    
Settlement amount (176.00)                    0.00

(176.00)                    (9.07)                    

Research and development costs that are not eligible for capitalisation have been expensed in the period incurred through the 
appropriate heads of accounts aggregating to INR 11.58 Cr (31 March 2024: INR 10.78 Cr).

(a) NSK and RHL, along with the Company (“Parties”), had entered into a settlement agreement (“SA”) on July 1, 2024, as a 
settlement and compromise of various claims, including warranty claim. Pursuant to the same, the Company has received the 
settlement amount of Rs. 176 Crores on September 27, 2024, from NSK.

(b) During the year ending March 31, 2024 the company had disposed off part of the goods returned in relation to the special 
warranty claims (refer Note No. 14)  as scrap sales amounting to Rs.9.07 Crs.



27B Income Tax expense

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Current Tax
Current income tax charge 0.01                          0.05                      

0.01                          0.05                      
Deferred Tax
Relating to the origination and reversal of temporary differences 51.06                        (15.65)                  
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 51.07                        (15.60)                  

Other comprehensive income (OCI) section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year
Re-measurement gains and (losses) on defined benefit obligations (net) (0.13)                        (0.27)                    
Income tax charged to OCI 50.94                        (15.87)                  

Accounting Profit before income tax 122.36                      (5.12)                    
Enacted tax rate in India 25.168% 34.944%
Profit before income tax multiplied by enacted tax rate 30.79                        (1.79)                    
Effects of:
Deduction in respect of Profit on Sale of Assets (0.05)                        -                           
Non deductible expenses 0.05                          0.09                      
Impact of non recogniton of deferred tax asset on certain deductible temporary 
differences (2.09)                        (15.89)                  
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous year -                               0.05                      
Impact of non recogniton of deferred tax asset on unused tax losses -                               1.94                      
Impact of opting for concessional tax regime* 22.37                        -                           
Net effective income tax 51.07                        (15.60)                  

Particulars
As at March 31, 

2025
As at March 31, 

2024
Business losses                               -                     110.43 

Others (provision for special warranty obligations, disputed indirect tax demands, etc)                         25.93                     34.74 

The major components of income tax expense for the period ended March 31, 2025 are:

The details of deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses on which deferred tax asset has not been recognised are as 
follows:

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2025 and 
March 31, 2024:

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard rate of 
corporation tax in India as follows:

Based on an assessment carried out by the management in respect of the relative tax costs and benefits under the different tax
regimes available under Income Tax Act, 1961, the Company, based on its future estimates, has decided to opt for the
concessional tax regime u/s 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 with effective tax rate of 25.168% from the year 2024-25
onwards, and has accordingly remeasured the tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2025 and the net deferred tax asset
balance as on the said date (also considering impact of carry forward of only those unused tax losses that are permitted under the
said section) resulting in a net impact of Rs.22.37 Crores that has been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss under Tax
Expense – deferred tax.  
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28 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Profit after tax                       71.29                     10.48 
Weighted average number of shares
     - Basic              1,79,00,000           1,79,00,000 
     - Diluted              1,79,00,000           1,79,00,000 
Profit per share of Rs.10 each
     - Basic (in Rs.)                       39.82                       5.86 
     - Diluted (in Rs.)                       39.82                       5.86 

29 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

29A

29B
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

29C Impairment of non-financial assets

29D Taxes

29E Defined benefit plans

29F Going concern assumption

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

The Company has incurred losses in the immediate previous four financial years primarily due to special warranty claims from certain lots of products sold 
by the Company. These losses have resulted in a net current liabilities position of Rs 166.68 Crores as at March 31, 2025 and 308.61 Crores as at March 
31, 2024. Based on business plans and cash flow projections, which consider various recurring and other events and also considering the commitment from 
the Holding Company to infuse additional funds to meet any commitment as they arise, the  management is of view that the Company will be able to meet 

its liabilities as they fall due. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company will continue as a going concern 

for the foreseeable future. 

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares
into Equity shares. 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year.

The preparation of the Company's Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods. In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following key judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 34
for further disclosures.

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Further details about defined benefit
obligations are given in Note 30.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. Impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value
less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the
budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will
enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Financial Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused Provision for warranty to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

Estimates and assumptions
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30 Employee Benefit Plans
A. Defined Benefit Plan

The defined benefit plans operated by the Company are as below :

Investment risk

Interest risk

Salary risk

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Current Service Cost 1.23                                   1.07                              
Interest Cost 0.85                                   0.72                              
Interest (income) on plan assets (0.64)                                  (0.57)                             
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 1.44                                   1.22                              

Actuarial (gains) / losses changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.47                                   0.10                              
Actuarial (gains) / losses changes arising from experience adjustments 0.03                                   0.64                              
Actuarial (gains )/ loss- Plan Assets 0.02                                   0.02                              
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in other comprehensive income 0.52                                   0.76                              
Total 1.96                                   1.98                              

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

The amount included in the financial position arising from the
Company's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 13.99                                 11.73                            

Fair value of plan assets 10.00                                 8.45                              
Net assets / (liabilities) from defined benefit obligation* (3.99)                                  (3.28)                             

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current year were as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation 11.73                                 9.68                              
Current Service Cost 1.23                                   1.07                              
Interest Cost 0.85                                   0.72                              
Actuarial (gains) / losses changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions -                                     -                                
Actuarial (gains) / losses changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.47                                   0.10                              
Actuarial (gains) / losses changes arising from experience adjustments 0.03                                   0.64                              
Benefits paid (0.32)                                  (0.48)                             
Closing defined benefit obligation 13.99                                 11.73                            

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a lump-sum payment to

vested employees upon resignation, retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary

payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company makes annual contributions to Life

Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate
determined by reference to government/high quality bond yields; if the return on plan asset is
below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially
offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will
increase the plan’s liability.

The defined benefit plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk and salary risk.

Gratuity
The gratuity plan is governed by the Company's policy read with provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the scheme, employee who has
completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement 
age.

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'employee benefit expense' in profit or loss.

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)



As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows:
Opening fair value of plan assets 8.45                                   7.35                              
Interest Income 0.64                                   0.57                              
Contributions 1.25                                   1.03                              
Benefits paid (0.32)                                  (0.48)                             
Actuarial gain / (loss) (0.02)                                  (0.04)                             
Closing fair value of plan assets 10.00                                 8.45                              

The principal assumptions used for actuarial valuation:

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024
Discount Rate 6.40% 7.00%
Rate of salary increase/salary escalation 10.00% 10.00%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as are as shown below:

0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
13.59                   14.42               11.40                                 12.08                            

                    (0.40) 0.43                                   (0.33) 0.35                              

0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
14.43                   13.57               12.10                                 11.39                            

0.44                                     (0.42) 0.36                                                                (0.35)

The following payments are expected contributions to be defined benefit plan in future years:

Leave obligations

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024
Discount Rate 6.40% 7.00%
Rate of salary increase/salary escalation 10.00% 10.00%

B. Defined contribution plans

(a) Provident fund

(b) Superannuation fund

Salary escalation Salary escalation

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Discount Rate Discount Rate

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of INR 4.23 Cr(for the year ended March 31, 2024 : INR 3.62 Cr) represents contributions payable to these plans
by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plans. As at March 31, 2025, contributions of INR 0.34 Cr (as at March 31, 2024 : INR 0.30 Cr) had not
been paid. The amounts were paid subsequent to the end of the respective reporting periods.

The leave obligations cover the Company’s liability for earned leave.
The principal assumptions used for the calculation of provision for long term compensated absences are as under:

Sensitivity Level

Assumptions
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024

Impact on defined benefit Obligation

The Company has a superannuation plan for the benefit of its employees. Employees who are members of the superannuation plan are entitled to benefits 
depending on the years of service and salary drawn.The Company contributes up to 15% of the eligible employees’ salary to LIC every year. Such 
contributions are recognised as an expense as and when incurred. The Company does not have any further obligation beyond this contribution.

Assumptions

Sensitivity Level

Impact on defined benefit Obligation

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of reporting period.

Particulars  As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 1.76                                                1.53                                                                            
Between 2 and 5 years 6.57                                                5.75                                                                            

Total expected payments 14.29                                              

Defined benefit Obligation

Defined benefit Obligation

The Company participates in a number of defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised in relation to these schemes 
represents the value of contributions payable during the period by the Company at rates specified by the rules of those plans. The only amounts included in the 
balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that were not due to be paid until after the end of the reporting period.

In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive
benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified
percentage of the covered employees salary. The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the Government.

12.35                                                                          

Between 5 and 10 years 5.96                                                5.07                                                                            
Beyond 10 years -                                                  -                                                                              
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31 Commitments and Contingencies

a) Capital commitments
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided 2.53                          6.00                         

b) Contingent liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

In respect of matters relating to Excise duty* 0.30 0.30

In respect of matters relating to Customs* 0.04 0.04

In respect of matters relating to Service Tax* 2.94 2.94

In respect of matters relating to GST* 24.96 2.92

In respect of matters relating to Income Tax* 8.08 8.08

In respect of matters relating to Bank Guarantee 0.00 0.08

* The above amounts exclude interest and penalty (unless included in the orignial demand).

32 Related Party Transactions
a. Names of related parties

Holding company Rane Holdings Limited (from September 19,2024)*

NSK Ltd., Japan (upto September 18, 2024)^

Joint Venturer (Entitles having Joint Control) Rane Holdings Limited (upto September 18,2024)^

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

iii) Matters wherein management has concluded the Company’s liability to be possible have accordingly been disclosed below:

i) Matters wherein management has concluded the Company's liability to be probable and has accordingly provided for in the books.

ii) Matters wherein management is confident of succeeding in these litigations and have concluded the Company’s liability to be
remote. This is based on the relevant facts of judicial precedents.

* Entity considered as Joint Venturer upto September 18, 2024 and become Holding Company from September 19, 2024 (Refer Note 
1- Corporate Information)

^ Entity considered as Holding company upto September 18, 2024 (Refer Note 1- Corporate Information)



Fellow subsidiaries Rane Holdings America Inc*
Rane Holdings Europe Gmbh*
Rane (Madras) Limited*
NSK Chugai, Ltd.^
NSK Europe Ltd.^
NSK Bearings Polska S.A.^
Kunshan NSK Co., Ltd. ^
Changshu NSK Needle Bearing Co., Ltd.^
NSK Bearings India Pvt Ltd^
NSK Korea Co., Ltd.^
NSK International Singapore (Private) Ltd.^
NSK Asean and Oceania Pte.Ltd  ^
PT NSK Bearing Manufacturing^

Fellow Associates ZF Rane Automative India Private Limited*
NSK Steering & Control Inc (formerly known as ADTech Corporation)^
NSK Steering Systems Co., Ltd,  Japan^
NSK Steering Systems America, Inc.^
NSK Steering Systems Europe(Polska) SP. Z O.O.^
Siam NSK Steering Systems Co., Ltd.^
NSK Hangzhou Automotive Components Co. Ltd^
NSK Steering Systems Deutschland GmbH(NSSD)^
NSK Steering Systems Dongguan Co Ltd^
NSK Steering Systems Europe Ltd.^

Key management personnel V Sethuraman - Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary
A Makesh - Manager (from February 01, 2025)
Naoki Kamamoto - Managing Director (upto September20, 2024)

* Entitites considered as subsidiaries of Joint Venturer upto September 18, 2024 and become Fellow subsidiaries from September 19, 
2024 (Refer Note 1- Corporate Information)

^ Entitites considered as Fellow subsidiaries upto September 18, 2024 (Refer Note 1- Corporate Information)

* Entitites considered as associates of Joint Venturer upto September 18, 2024 and become Fellow associates from September 19, 
2024 (Refer Note 1- Corporate Information)
^ Entitites considered as Fellow associates upto September 18, 2024 (Refer Note 1- Corporate Information)

Fellow Subsidiaries/ Associates/ Joint ventures of other entities within the Group
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32 Related party transactions (continued)

b. Related party transactions:

Year ended
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Purchase of goods
NSK Limited., Japan 16.15               51.12               -                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        
Siam NSK Steering Systems Co., Ltd. -                       -                       -                          -                       -                   0.31                 0.30                 0.90                 -                              -                       -                       -                        
Changshu NSK Needle Bearing Co., Ltd. -                       -                       -                          -                       3.99                 15.72               -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        
NSK Chugai, Ltd. -                       -                       -                          -                       0.72                 1.59                 -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        
NSK Bearings India Pvt Ltd -                       -                       -                          -                       14.91               29.47               -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        
NSK Steering Systems Dongguan Co Ltd -                       -                       -                          -                       -                   -                       0.03                 -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        
NSK Hangzhou Automotive Components Co. Ltd -                       -                       -                          -                       -                       0.09                 0.11                 0.65                 -                              -                       -                       -                        
Kunshan NSK Co., Ltd. -                       -                       -                          -                       0.09                 0.45                 -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        
NSK Steering Systems Europe(Polska) -                       -                       -                          -                       -                   0.01                 0.03                 0.01                 -                              -                       -                       -                        
NSK Bearings Polska S.A. -                       -                       -                          -                       0.32                 1.40                 -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        
NSK Steering Systems America, Inc. -                       -                       -                          -                       -                   -                       -                       0.00                 -                              -                       -                       -                        
Rane (Madras) Limited -                       -                       -                          -                       0.04                 -                       -                       -                       0.00                        0.01 -                       -                        
ZF Rane Automotive India Private Limited -                       -                       -                          -                       -                       -                       0.01                 -                       0.00                        0.00                 -                       -                        

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment
NSK Limited., Japan 0.70                 9.29                 -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Chugai, Ltd. -                   -                   -                      -                   0.04                 0.25                 -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Hangzhou Automotive Components Co. Ltd -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   4.28                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
Rane Holdings Limited -                   -                   0.13                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    

Royalty
NSK Steering & Control Inc (formerly known as ADTech Corporation) -                       -                       -                          -                       0.00 9.69                 14.07               21.62               -                              -                       -                       -                        

Interest & Guarantee fee
Rane Holdings Limited 1.00                 -                       -                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        
NSK Limited., Japan 0.08                 0.36                 -                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        

Miscellaneous expenses
NSK Limited., Japan 0.41                 0.85                 -                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        
Rane Holdings Limited 2.13                 -                       1.39                    3.43                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        

Particulars
Holding company Fellow SubsidiaryJoint Venturer Key management personnelFellow Associate

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

Associates/ Subsidiaries/Joint 
ventures of Joint Venturer



Year ended
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Trademark fees
Rane Holdings Limited -                       -                       -                          17.04               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        

License fees
Rane Holdings Limited 22.65               -                       

Legal and professional fees
Rane Holdings Limited 4.10                 -                       2.36                    6.12                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        
Rane Holdings America Inc                                -                       -                       -                          -                       0.11                 0 -                       -                       0.09                        0.21                 -                       -                        
Rane Holdings Europe Gmbh                                -                       -                       -                          -                       (0.02)                -                       -                       0.04                        0.08                 -                       -                        
NSK Europe Ltd. -                       -                       -                          -                       -                       0.11                 -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        
NSK Steering Systems Deutschland GmbH   -                       0.05                 0.02                 -                              -                       

Staff welfare expenses
Rane Holdings Limited 0.18                 -                       0.11                    0.29                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                              -                       -                       -                        

Term Loan availed
Rane Holdings Limited 50.00               

Sale of goods/services
NSK Steering & Control Inc (formerly known as ADTech Corporation) -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   0.31                 0.36                 0.76                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Steering Systems Co., Ltd,  Japan -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   0.00                 0.01                 0.11                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Steering Systems America, Inc. -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   2.92                 5.94                 7.45                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Steering Systems Deutschland GmbH   -                   -                   -                      -                   0.00                 0.70                 0.08                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Europe Ltd. -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   0.15                 -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Hangzhou Automotive Components Co. Ltd -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   0.05                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
Rane (Madras) Limited -                   -                   -                      -                   16.58               -                   -                   -                   17.69                      41.86               -                   -                    
ZF Rane Automotive India Private Limited -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   0.07                 -                   0.04                        0.09                 -                   -                    

Reimbursement of expenses paid
NSK Limited., Japan 0.10                 2.74                 -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Bearings India Pvt Ltd -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   0.01                 -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Steering Systems America, Inc. -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   0.01                 0.01                 0.03                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Steering & Control Inc (formerly known as ADTech Corporation) -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   0.01                 -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
Rane (Madras) Limited -                   -                   -                      -                   0.01                 -                   -                   -                   0.00                        0.01                 -                   -                    
ZF Rane Automotive India Private Limited -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                          0.00                 -                   -                    

Reimbursement of expenses received
NSK Limited., Japan 0.88                 0.00                 -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
Rane Holdings Limited 0.01                 -                   -                      0.11                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   
NSK Bearings India Pvt Ltd -                   -                   -                      -                   0.00                 0.01                 -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
Rane (Madras) Limited -                   -                   -                      -                   0.00                 -                   -                   -                   -                          0.00                 -                   

Managerial remuneration
Mr. V. Sethuraman -                       -                       -                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                              -                       0.65                  0.58                   
Mr. A. Makesh 0.14                  -                        
Mr. Naoki Kamamoto -                       -                       -                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                              -                       0.91                  1.94                   

Particulars
Key management personnelHolding company Fellow Subsidiary

Associates/ Subsidiaries/Joint 
ventures of Joint Venturer

Fellow AssociateJoint Venture



32 Related party transactions (continued)

b. Balance outstanding as at the year end:

As at
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Term Loan outstanding
Rane Holdings Limited 50.00               -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    

Trade payables
NSK Limited., Japan -                   13.37               -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
Rane Holdings Limited 0.14                 -                   -                      1.64                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Steering & Control Inc (formerly known as ADTech Corporation) -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   28.18               -                          -                   -                   -                    
Siam NSK Steering Systems Co., Ltd. -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   0.08                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
Changshu NSK Needle Bearing Co., Ltd. -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   3.34                 -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Chugai, Ltd. -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   0.29                 -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Bearings India Pvt Ltd -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   3.00                 -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Steering Systems America, Inc. -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   0.01                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Steering Systems Europe(Polska) -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   0.00                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Bearings Polska S.A. -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   0.31                 -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
Kunshan NSK Co., Ltd. -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   0.03                 -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Steering Systems Deutschland GmbH   -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   0.02                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
Rane Holdings Europe Gmbh                                -                   -                   -                      -                   0.02                 -                   -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
Rane (Madras) Limited -                   -                   -                      -                   0.01                 -                   -                   -                   -                          0.00                 -                   -                    
ZF Rane Automotive India Private Limited -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   0.00                 -                   -                          0.00                 -                   -                    

Payable for Capital Creditors
NSK Limited., Japan -                   8.39                 -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Hangzhou Automotive Components Co. Ltd -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                          -                   -                   -                    

Trade receivables
Rane (Madras) Limited -                   -                   -                      -                   7.00                 -                   -                   -                   -                          7.67                 -                   -                    
ZF Rane Automotive India Private Limited -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   0.04                 -                   -                          0.03                 -                   -                    
NSK Steering Systems Co., Ltd,  Japan -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   0.06                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Steering Systems America, Inc. -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   1.21                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Steering Systems Deutschland GmbH   -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   0.04                 -                          -                   -                   -                    
NSK Steering & Control Inc (formerly known as ADTech Corporation) -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   0.18                 -                          -                   -                   -                    

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party
receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2024: INR Nil, April 1, 2023 : Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Key management personnel
Particulars

Holding company Fellow SubsidiaryJoint Venture

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management personnel. The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an
actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

Associates/ Subsidiaries/Joint 
ventures of Joint Venturer

Fellow Associate
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33 Segment Information

33.1

33.2  Geographical Information

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

India                     1,692.34                     1,706.85                        266.29                        259.13 
Rest of World                          13.99                          11.88                                -                                  -   

Total                     1,706.33                     1,718.73                        266.29                        259.13 

33.3

34 Financial risk management objectives and policies

Market Risk

(i) Interest rate risk 

(ii) Foreign currency risk

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency) and the impact on purchase of capital goods from the Companies outside India. A major portion of the business is
transacted in Japanese Yen / Thai Bhatt / US Dollar / EUR / Chinese Yen exposing the Company to foreign exchange risk through materials / capital goods
imported from Japan, Thailand, USA and European countries.

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long term obligations with fixed interest rates and 
hence not exposed to interest rate risk. 

The Company primarily operates in the automotive segment. The automotive segment includes all activities related to development, design and manufacture of
products. The board of directors of the Company, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company's
performance, allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a single unit. Therefore, there is no reportable
segment for the Company as per the requirement of IND AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

The Company's principal financial liabilities, include trade and other payables. The Company has various financial assets such as trade receivables and cash &
Cash equivalents, which arise directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and
seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The
Company’s senior management ensures that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and credit risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Revenue from operations from external 
customers

 Non - current assets**

Particulars

** Non- current assets are used in the operations of the Company to generate revenues both in India and outside India.

 Product wise break up - Please refer Note no 19- Revenue from Operations

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers contributing more than 10% of sale of products amounted to Rs. 1462.46  Cr (31 March 2024: Rs. 1464.80 Cr), arising from 
sales of products and rendering of services



Rs in Crores Rs in Crores

USD Changes 
in rate

Effect in Profit 
before Tax

Effect in Pre Tax 
Equity

 As at March 31, 2025 5% (0.57)                         (0.57)                         
(5%)                           0.57                           0.57                           

 As at March 31, 2024 5% (0.07)                         (0.07)                         
(5%)                           0.07                           0.07                           

JPY Changes 
in rate

Effect in Profit 
before Tax

Effect in Pre Tax 
Equity

 As at March 31, 2025 5% (0.68)                         (0.68)                         
(5%)                           0.68                           0.68                           

 As at March 31, 2024 5% (0.53)                         (0.53)                         
(5%)                           0.53                           0.53                           

EUR Changes 
in rate

Effect in Profit 
before Tax

Effect in Pre Tax 
Equity

 As at March 31, 2025 5% (0.00)                         (0.00)                         
(5%)                           0.00                           0.00                           

 As at March 31, 2024 5% (0.00)                         (0.00)                         
(5%)                           0.00                           0.00                           

THB Changes 
in rate

Effect in Profit 
before Tax

Effect in Pre Tax 
Equity

 As at March 31, 2025 5% (0.02)                         (0.02)                         
(5%)                           0.02                           0.02                           

 As at March 31, 2024 5% (0.02)                         (0.02)                         
(5%)                           0.02                           0.02                           

CNY Changes 
in rate

Effect in Profit 
before Tax

Effect in Pre Tax 
Equity

 As at March 31, 2025 5% (0.29)                         (0.29)                         
(5%)                           0.29                           0.29                           

 As at March 31, 2024 5% (0.05)                         (0.05)                         
(5%)                           0.05                           0.05                           

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to 5% increase / decrease in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures as at the year end, with all other
variables constant.



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Crores of Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Foreign 
Currency

Amount in 
Foreign 

Currency*

Amount in 
Indian Rupees 

Crores

Amount in 
Foreign 

Currency*

Amount in Indian 
Rupees Crores

Trade Payables  USD           0.14        12.38          0.03           2.80 
 JPY        24.00        13.62        19.35         10.65 
EUR ^           0.00           0.08          0.00           0.03 
THB           0.19           0.48          0.16           0.36 

CNY               0.59           6.95          0.08           0.97 

Trade Receivable USD           0.01           0.85          0.02           1.49 
JPY                -                -                -                 - 
EUR ^                -                -                -                 - 

Advance  USD           0.00           0.14                -                 - 
 JPY                -                -                -                 - 
EUR                -                -                -                 - 
CNY           0.11           1.24                -                 - 

* Amounts in Crores of Foreign currency
^ Amount below rounding off threshold

(iii) Credit risk

Liquidity risk

On demand
Less than 3 

months
3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

 As at March 31, 2025
Borrowings (Non-current)                           -                             -                            -                        50.00                         -                      50.00 
Borrowings (Current)                           -                     174.05                          -                              -                           -                    174.05 
Other financial liabilities                           -                       18.54                       2.76                        0.28                         -                      21.58 
Trade and other payables                           -                     273.05                          -                              -                           -                    273.05 
Lease liabilities (Current and Non-
Current)

                          -                         0.91                       2.44                        6.22                     2.28                    11.85 

                          -                     466.55                       5.20                      56.50                     2.28                  530.53 

 As at March 31, 2024
Borrowings (Non-current)                           -                             -                            -                              -                           -                            -   
Borrowings (Current)                           -                     264.00                    61.00                            -                           -                    325.00 
Other financial liabilities                           -                       11.30                       3.16                        0.28                         -                      14.74 
Trade and other payables                           -                     262.77                          -                              -                           -                    262.77 
Lease liabilities (Current and Non-
Current)

                          -                         0.61                       1.93                        2.31                     1.72                       6.57 

                          -                     538.68                    66.09                        2.59                     1.72                  609.08 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Unhedged foreign currency exposure

Particulars

 As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made
only with Banks.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company's exposure to credit risk is
limited to its operating activities with respect to specified markets (primarily for trade receivables), where the Company sells their products on credit. However these are
backed by Letter of Credit, hence the exposure to such risk is not material.

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as the Company has large portfolio of customers with their operations spread
across the country in several jurisdictions.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is the carrying amounts.

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and
ensure funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using its forecasts. The table below summarizes the maturity
profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

The Company's prime source of liquidity is cash and cash equivalents. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank & fixed deposit which carry minimal mark to
market risks.

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)
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35 Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Particulars As at March 31, 
2025

As at March 31, 
2024

5.58 10.32

                           -                              -   

                           -                              -   

                           -                              -   

                           -                              -   

36 Capital management

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Borrowings 224.05                      325.00                  
Less: cash and cash equivalents (0.05)                        (0.35)                     

Net debt                       224.00                    324.65 

Equity 84.21                        13.31                    
Capital and net debt                       308.21                    337.96 
Gearing ratio 73% 96%

36A

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 % change Reason for variance

Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.67                      0.53                      28.41%
Repayment of debt
due to receipt of
exceptional income

Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 2.66                      24.42                    -89.10%
Repayment of debt
due to receipt of
exceptional income

Debt Service Coverage ratio

Earning for Debt Service
= Net Profit after taxes +
Non-cash operating
expenses like
depreciation and other
amortizations + Interest
+ other adjustments like
loss on sale of Fixed
assets etc.

Debt service = 
Interest & Lease 
Payments + Principal 
Repayments

5.18                      2.64                      96.23%
Due to exceptional 
income

Return on Equity ratio
Net Profits after taxes – 
Preference Dividend

Average 
Shareholder’s Equity

146% 126% 16.00%

Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 11.85                    10.19                    16.29%

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio
Net credit sales = Gross 
credit sales - sales return

Average Trade 
Receivable

7.93                      8.79                      -9.85%

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio
Net credit purchases = 
Gross credit purchases - 
purchase return

Average Trade 
Payables

5.23                      5.40                      -3.11%

Net Capital Turnover Ratio
Net sales = Total sales - 
sales return

Working capital = 
Current assets – 
Current liabilities

(10.24)                   (5.57)                     83.82%
Due to exceptional 
income

Net Profit ratio Net Profit
Net sales = Total 
sales - sales return

4.18% 0.61% 585.19%
Due to exceptional 
income

Return on Capital Employed
Earnings before interest 
and taxes

Capital Employed = 
Tangible Net Worth 
+ Total Debt + 
Deferred Tax 
Liability

52.69% 8.14% 546.95%
Due to exceptional 
income

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

Return on Investment (The Company does not have any income bearing investments)

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Capital includes debt and equity items as disclosed in the table below

Based on information available with the Company regarding status of the suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
there are no overdue amounts payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. Further, the Company has not paid any interest to any Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises during the current and Previous year.

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. In the event that the Company requires additional capital, monies
would be infused by the shareholders to provide appropriate financial support to the Company.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, borrowings, less cash
and short-term deposits, if any. 

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year;

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act along with the 
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid 
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED 
Act;

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

Ratio Analysis and its elements
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36B Fair value measurement

Categories of financial instruments

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024

Financial assets

Measured at amortised cost
 - Trade receivables                     215.45                    215.12 
 - Cash and cash equivalents                         0.05                        0.35 
 - Loans and advances                         0.43                        0.21 
 - Other financial assets (Current)                         0.11                        0.14 
 - Other financial assets (Non-Current)                         5.07                        2.91 

Measured at Fair Value through P&L

- Investment in Equity Instruments                         0.44                        0.44 
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost

- Borrowings
Non current                       50.00 
Current                     174.05 325.00                

- Lease Liabilities
Non current                         8.50 4.02                       
Current                         3.35 2.55                       

- Trade Payables                     273.05 262.76                   
- Other Financial liabilities                       21.58 14.74                     

Fair value hierarchy

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024
Fair Value Hierarchy

(Level 1,2,3)*

- Investment in Equity Instruments 0.44                        0.44                       Level 3

*Fair value measurement hierarchy

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data

The management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at amortised
cost in the balance sheet approximates their fair value.

The Company carries equity investment in companies which were made at the respective face values. As per the Share
Subscription agreements entered into by the company in respect of these investments, the shares shall be bought back at
fair value. Since there is no material change in the fair value between the investment date and the reporting date, the cost of
investment (being the fair value as at the investment date) is regarded as the best estimate of its fair value as at the reporting date.

In the opinion of the management, the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial
statements are a resonable approximation of their fair values. Hence,no separate disclosures of fair value has been made.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
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37 Leases

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period

Particulars Plant and Machinery Buildings Total
As at 01 April 2023 2.03                                        7.11                   9.14                          
Additions 0.00 0.00 0.00
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00
Depreciation expense (0.11) (3.40) (3.51)
As at 31 March 2024 1.92                                        3.72                   5.64                          

Additions 0.00 9.65 9.65
Disposals 0.00 (0.53) (0.53)
Depreciation expense (0.11) (3.57) (3.68)
As at 31 March 2025 1.81                                        9.27                   11.08                         

Particulars Amount
As at 01 April 2023 10.40                                      
Additions -                                         
Accretion of interest 0.69                                        

Payments (4.52)                                      

As at 31 March 2024 6.57                                        

Additions 9.65                                        
Accretion of interest 0.95                                        
De-recognition (0.75)                                      
Payments (4.57)                                      
As at 31 March 2025 11.85                                      

Current 3.35
Non - Current 8.50

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 34

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is range from 6.50% to 8.85 %, with maturity between 2025-2041

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars
As at March 31, 

2025
As at March 31, 

2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 3.68                   3.51                          
Interest expense on lease liabilities 0.95                   0.69                          
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 0.66                   1.11                          
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) -                     -                            
Variable lease payments (included in other expenses) -                     -                            
Total amount recognised in Profit or Loss 5.29                   5.31                          

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide
flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in
determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts for various items of plant and machinery and buildings used in its operations. Leases of plant and machinery
generally have lease terms between 3 and 20 years, while buildings generally have lease terms between 3 and 7 years. The Company’s obligations
under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets and some contracts require the Company to maintain certain financial ratios. There are lease contracts that include extension and
termination options and variable lease payments, which are further discussed below

The Company also has certain leases of machinery with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The
Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the 
period

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of INR 4.57 crores for the year ended 31 March 2025 (INR.4.52 Crores for the year ended 31
March 2024)
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38 Other Statutory Information 

39 Events after the reporting period

40
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(viii) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or Government or any Government Authority.

There has been no significant subsequent events after the reporting period requiring either disclosure or adjustment to the reported financial
statements.

Rane Steering Systems Private Limited
(Formerly known as Rane NSK Steering Systems Private Limited)

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 07, 2025.

(i)  The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any 
Benami property.
(ii)  The Company do not have any transactions with struck off companies during the year.
(iii)  The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with 
the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961


